
 
Matt Russell, Mayor 
Garry Wilson, Ward II 

Christopher Updike, Ward III 
Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Shane Grooms, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

City Council Chambers, 540 Civic Boulevard  

October 19, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve October 5, 2021 City Council Minutes. 

2. As per RSMo. 109.230(4), City records that are on file in the City Clerk’s office and have met the 
retention schedule will be destroyed in compliance with the guidelines established by the 
Secretary of State’s office. 

3. Approve Vendor List. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting (Cancelled)      November 4, 2021 
City Council Budget Workshop at 5:30           November 4, 2021  
Planning & Zoning Meeting                             November 8, 2021 
City Council Meeting                                       November 16, 2021 
City Council Meeting                                       November 30, 2021 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

4. 21-58 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the Final Plat 

of Olde Savannah Phase Two Subdivision. 

5. 21-63 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the Final Plat 

of Monte Cristo Phase 10 Subdivision. 

6. 21-64 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending Title I, 

Government Code, Chapter 110, Administrative Policies, Article VIII, Authority to Enter into 

Contracts Policy and Chapter 120, City Officers and Employees, Article IV, Miscellaneous 

Provisions. 

7. 21-65 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the Execution 

of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Missouri Department of Social Services Family Support 

Division Regarding the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

8. 21-R-48 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Appointing a Council 

Member for Ward 1. 

Swearing-In of Appointed Official 

 

 

1



 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

9. 21-66 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending Title IV, Land 
Use, Chapter 405, Zoning Regulations, Article V, Height and Area Requirements, Exceptions, and 
Modifications. 

10. 21-67 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending Title VI, 

Business Occupation. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

11. 21-R-49 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving a Preliminary 
Plat for Emerald Valley Phase 2, a Residential Subdivision Consisting of Approximately 48 Acres 
Located in the 1300 Block of North Main Street. 

12. 21-R-50 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing Execution 

of a Public Donation Agreement Accepting Real Property from Convoy of Hope. 

13. 21-R-51 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the 

Execution of a Fourth Amendment to Communication Lease Agreement with New Cingular 

Wireless PCS, LLC. 

Reports from Staff 

Executive Session:  No further action, other than announcing adjournment by the Mayor, shall take 
place after an Executive Session that is scheduled as the last matter on the Agenda unless otherwise 
stated on the Agenda or as allowed per RSMo. 610.02. 

   1.    RSMo 610.021.1 Pending and/or potential litigation. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   2.    RSMo 610.021.2 Real estate acquisition. Closed session. Closed vote. Closed record. 

   3.    RSMo 610.021.3 Hiring, firing, promotion, or disciplining personnel. Closed session. Closed vote. 
Closed record. 

Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 

address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 
attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 732-3101 at least three days prior to the 

scheduled meeting. All meetings are tape recorded for public viewing. 

2



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  O c t o b e r  0 5 ,  2 0 2 1  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Garry Wilson, Ward II 

Christopher Updike, Ward III 
Jennifer Mitchell, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Gerry Pool, Ward II 

Shane Grooms, Ward III 
Jim Deichman, Ward IV 

 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

City Council Chambers, 540 Civic Boulevard  

October 05, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m.   Council Members present included Christopher 
Updike, Eric Franklin, Garry Wilson, Gerry Pool, Shane Grooms, and Jennifer Mitchell.  Others in 
attendance were: City Administrator David Cameron, Interim City Attorney Damon Phillips, Assistant City 
Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling, Information Systems Director Chris Crosby, 
Police Chief Brian Sells, Planning Manager Karen Haynes, Fire Chief Duane Compton, Chief of Staff Lisa 
Addington, BUILDS Administrator Andrew Nelson, Public Information Officer Allyssa Dudley, Finance 
Director Meghin Cook, and City Clerk Laura Burbridge. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance to the United States Flag 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Matt Russell opened citizen participation at 6:01 p.m.  State Representative Bishop Davidson 
presented a Resolution to the Mayor for the 150th Anniversary of the City of Republic.   

Ralph Belitz, 1466 S Natchez, spoke regarding the need for a noise ordinance regarding early morning yard 
or construction work.  Mr. Belitz also shared his street needs a speed limit sign due to speeding 
issues.  Mayor Russell closed citizen participation at 6:12 p.m. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Pool and seconded by Council Member Franklin to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Pool, Wilson, Updike, and Mitchell. 0 Nay. Motion 
Carried. 

1. Approve September 21, 2021, City Council Minutes. 
2. 21-R-43 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving and 

Authorizing the City Administrator to Submit a Renewal Application for Hall Provider of Bingo 

Premises. 

3. 21-R-44 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the 2022 City 

Council and Other 2022 Meeting Dates. 

4. 21-R-45 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the City 

Administrator to Continue Engaging Outside Legal Counsel Regarding Environmental Compliance 

Matters. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting                           October 7, 2021 (Cancelled) 
Planning & Zoning Meeting                            October 12, 2021 
 

3

Item 1.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  O c t o b e r  0 5 ,  2 0 2 1  

City Council Meeting                                        October 19, 2021 
City Council Budget Workshop                        October 26, 2021 
City Council Meeting                                        November 2, 2021 

City Clerk Laura Burbridge provided updated dates.  The Budget Workshop has been moved to November 
4th.  The November 2nd meeting was moved to November 30th. 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

5. 21-58 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the Final 

Plat of Olde Savannah Phase Two Subdivision. 

Staff notified Council that Bill 21-58 needed to be tabled until October 19th.  Council Member 
Grooms motioned to table the meeting until October 19, 2021.  Council Member Wilson 
seconded.  The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Mitchell, Pool, Updike, and Wilson.  0 
Nay.  Motion Carried. 

6. 21-61 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Amending 
the Zoning Code and Official Map by Changing the Classification of Approximately 4.77 Acres 
from Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) to General Commercial (C-3), Located at 
503 North West Avenue. 

Motion was made by Council Member Mitchell and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 21-61 by title only.  The vote was 5 Aye-Franklin, Pool, Wilson, Mitchell, 
and Updike.  0 Nay.  1 Abstention-Grooms. Motion Carried. Karen Haynes was available to answer 
any questions from Council.  Council Member Updike motioned for the passage of Bill 21-
61.  Council Member Mitchell seconded.  A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 6 Aye-
Mitchell, Pool, Wilson, Updike, and Franklin.  0 Nay.  1 Abstention-Grooms. Motion Carried. 

7. 21-62 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving Entry of an 

Abatement Order on Consent with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources Regarding 

Wastewater Treatment and Authorizing the Execution of Same by the Mayor. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Grooms to have 
the second reading of Bill 21-62 by title only.  The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Pool, Wilson, 
Mitchell, and Updike.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. Andrew Nelson was available to answer any 
questions from Council.  Council Member Wilson motioned for the passage of Bill 21-62.  Council 
Member Updike seconded.  A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 6 Aye-Mitchell, Pool, 
Wilson, Updike, Franklin, and Grooms. 0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

8. 21-63 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Approving the Final 

Plat of the Monte Cristo Phase 10 Subdivision. 

Motion was made by Council Member Grooms and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the first reading of Bill 21-63 by title only.  The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Mitchell, Pool, 
Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes provided an overview of the 
bill.  Gayle Saunders, 631 W. Melody Lane, spoke about concerns that developers are not taking 
care of the tree required to be planted on each property at development, stating that many of 
the trees planted in prior phases are no longer living. Mayor Russell reminded Council this is a first 
read and to get with staff prior to the next meeting with any questions. 

4

Item 1.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  O c t o b e r  0 5 ,  2 0 2 1  

9. 21-64 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Amending Title I, 

Government Code, Chapter 110, Administrative Policies, Article VIII, Authority to Enter into 

Contracts Policy and Chapter 120, City Officers and Employees, Article IV, Miscellaneous 

Provisions. 

Motion was made by Council Member Grooms and seconded by Council Member Wilson to have 
the first reading of Bill 21-64 by title only.  The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Mitchell, Pool, 
Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Karen Haynes provided an overview of the 
bill.  Mayor Russell reminded Council to get with staff prior to the next meeting with any 
questions. 

10. 21-65 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the 

Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Missouri Department of Social Services 

Family Support Division Regarding the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program. 

Motion was made by Council Member Grooms and seconded by Council Member Updike to have 
the first reading of Bill 21-65 by title only.  The vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Mitchell, Pool, 
Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried.  Meghin Cook provided an overview of the 
bill.  Mayor Russell reminded Council to get with staff prior to the next meeting with any 
questions. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

11. 21-R-46 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Authorizing the Police 

and Fire Departments to Utilize Cares Act Reimbursement Funds Allocated by Greene County, 

Missouri. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Updike to 
approve Resolution 21-R-46.  Police Chief Brian Sells provided an overview of the Resolution.  The 
vote was 6 Aye-Franklin, Grooms, Wilson, Pool, Mitchell, and Updike. 0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

12. 21-R-47 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, Determining the Intent 

of the City of Republic, Missouri, to Reimburse Itself for Certain Capital Expenditures in 

Connection with the Acquisition, Construction, and Equipping of a Public Works Facility.   

Motion was made by Council Member Updike and seconded by Council Member Pool to approve 
Resolution 21-R-47. Andrew Nelson provided an overview of the Resolution.  The vote was 6 Aye-
Franklin, Grooms, Wilson, Pool, Mitchell, and Updike. 0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron noted the invitation provided to Council for the dedication ceremony 
of the Gateway Sign on Friday at 11:00.  Mr. Cameron thanked Jared and Jennafer for their work on the 
sign and thanked City Utilities for the lease of the land.  Mr. Cameron emphasized that we would love to 
have many people at the dedication ceremony, but there is no parking at the sign.  Mr. Cameron shared 
there will be a shuttle service from the neighboring parking lot to the site.  Mr. Cameron shared we are 
still working on road access.  Mr. Cameron thanked the citizens for voting to build this sign and 
emphasized not to park on the highway. 

City Administrator David Cameron shared on November 3rd; the Commission is expected to approve a 6-
million-dollar allocation for widening MM.  Mr. Cameron shared he and Andrew  will be there for the vote 
and shared it is an open hearing in Kansas City.  Mr. Cameron reported we are still working on the 
intergovernmental agreement with Greene County for another 1.5 million dollars of improvements as 

5

Item 1.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  O c t o b e r  0 5 ,  2 0 2 1  

well.  Mr. Cameron reminded everyone that widening the street from 2 to 5 lanes will involve property 
acquisition.  Mr. Cameron thanked everyone for the work done on this project. 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked the Pumpkin Daze Committee for the great job on Pumpkin 
Daze.  The Parks and Recreation Trust Edge pillar of focus was connection and they focused on connecting 
with different agencies in the community.  Mr. Cameron shared the Parks Department partnered with the 
committee without taking the event from them.  Mr. Cameron thanked the committee for their 
willingness to partner on this and thanked to our team for looking outside ourselves.  Mr. Cameron shared 
it was great to see our banner with their logo and anticipates next year will be bigger and better.  Mr. 
Cameron thanked staff for their vision and shared they are always first class and to the nines.  Mr. 
Cameron shared he presented at the Chamber today about the growth and development of the city and 
looks forward to presenting to Council in November about the vision of the city in coordination with the 
budget discussion.  Mr. Cameron shared his appreciation to the Chamber for allowing him to present this 
and thanked Mayor Russell and Council Member Mitchell for attending.   

City Administrator David Cameron thanked Karen, Garrett, Jason, and Andrew for their work in Kansas 
City last week for a 2-day planning meeting on the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Mr. Cameron thanked 
State Representative Davidson for meeting to discuss fund availability and shared Congressman Long's 
office also called about it.  Mr. Cameron emphasized we work hard to find a solution and the Mayor has 
been instrumental, possibly needing to go to Jefferson City at a moment's notice.  Mr. Cameron 
acknowledged the fabulous job Public Information Officer Allyssa Dudley did on the presentation.  Mr. 
Cameron shared she has been here 2-3 weeks and made the presentation with less than one hour of face 
time with him to set this up.  Mr. Cameron thanked Allyssa, Chris, and Lisa for their work preparing for it 
and praised phenomenal result.  Mr. Cameron shared he had a great time, despite not remembering much 
of it, and appreciates the work we and this community are doing. 

City Administrator David Cameron shared he and Mayor Russell interviewed four candidates for the Ward 
1 position and hope to get back together to discuss this in a few days.  Mr. Cameron shared we are a 
growing city and could have up to 14,000 more people.  Mr. Cameron shared we are working to improve 
the quality of place in Republic.  Mr. Cameron thanked Mayor Russell and former Mayor Jeff Ussery 
for  allowing us the tremendous potential to do our jobs.  Mr. Cameron shared every time he and Mayor 
Russell meet, Mayor Russell asks how he can help.  Mr. Cameron acknowledged he sees that from each 
member of Council and appreciates that we are allowed to do our job without interference.  Mr. Cameron 
emphasized alignment starts at the legislative body and culture changes in the community.  Mr. Cameron 
praised the great leadership on this Council, especially for the $200.00 per month paycheck.  Mr. Cameron 
emphasized it is a labor of love to lead and guide this community.  We are trying to address the heavy 
items but still work on the smaller ones as well.  We have 150-200 million dollars of decisions facing the 
community and Mayor Russell understands this as a business owner. 

Council Member Franklin thanked everyone from Pumpkin Daze for the great event.  Mr. Franklin shared 
it was great to see people laughing and having a good time.  Mr. Franklin thanked everyone who was 
involved in the event. 

Mayor Matt Russell shared they did interview for the Ward 1 vacancy and had some qualified individuals 
apply.  Mayor Russell shared they will sit down and talk this week and get it worked out.  Mayor Russell 
shared he would like to have a full legislative body again.  

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m. 
 
 

6

Item 1.



 

 
 5 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  O c t o b e r  0 5 ,  2 0 2 1  

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         ___________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

7

Item 1.



  Record Destruction Request 
Form  

Page 1 of 2 

MISSOURI RETENTION MANUAL CODE NAME/DATE OF RECORDS TO BE 
DISPOSED 

DATE(S) OF 
DOCUMENTS 

RETENTION TIME 
NEEDED FOR 

RECORD 

GS 090 Unemployment Insurance 
Case Files 

Unemployment records 1989-1990, 
1992-2001, 

2003, 
2005-2013 

2 years after last 
action 

 

GS 027 Employee Medical Records Insurance Claims and medical 
documentation 

2001-2013 7 years after 
separation 

GS 064 Training Records Training Records-training 
materials 

2000 1) Training 
materials, retain 
one copy until 
superseded; 2) 

Program 
materials, retain 

3 years 
GS 043 Drug Testing Records Drug Test Results 2002, 

2005-2010 
Retain positive 5 

years, retain 
negative 1 year. 

GS 063 Position Description, 
Classification, and Compensation 
Records 

Wage Surveys 2004, 2007, 
2013 

3 years after 
obsolete or 
superseded 

GS 091 Worker’s Compensation Case 
File 

Worker’s Comp 2005-2010 10 years after 
closed if action 

8

Item 2.



  Record Destruction Request 
Form  

Page 2 of 2 

taken, 3 years if 
no action 

 
GS 028 Time and Attendance 
Records 

Timesheets 1993-1999, 
2001-2002, 

2004, 
2016-2017 

3 years plus 
audit 

GS 033 Wage and Tax Statements W-2’s 2006-2008, 
2013-2015 

5 years 

GS 034 Federal and State Tax 
Records 

1099’s, 941’s, W-9’s, and similar 
federal and state completed forms. 

2013 5 years 

GS 062 Employment Recruitment & 
Selection Records 
 

Postings and unsuccessful 
applicants. 

2017 Retain 
unsuccessful 

application and 
other records 1 

year, 
Announcements 

3 years 
 

 

9

Item 2.



10/15/2021 3:50:51 PM Page 1 of 1

My Vendor Audit Report
City of Republic For Date Range 09/01/2021 - 10/29/2021

Vendor Added Added User Deleted Deleted User

07501 - TNT Inspection Services LLC 09/01/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07502 - Northwestern University 09/03/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07503 - Michael Dewayne Wells 09/09/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07504 - Huntley Tree Service LLC 09/14/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07505 - GearGrid LLC 09/15/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07506 - Northstar Construction Management Co Inc 09/17/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07507 - The Trails At Valley Park LLC 09/17/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07508 - Imperial LLC 09/23/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07509 - Delong Plumbing Two Inc 09/23/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07510 - Sam Richardson 09/23/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07511 - Josiah Kennard 09/23/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07512 - Elijah Kennard 09/23/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07513 - Elisabeth Creech 09/23/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07517 - Ethan Meyer 09/30/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07518 - Edward Mark Ellman 10/05/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07519 - Duane Gerald Lewis 10/05/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07520 - Richard T Struckhoff 10/05/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07521 - David J Sharon 10/05/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07522 - Randall J Swift 10/05/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07523 - DSPN Media and Consulting LLC 10/05/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07525 - Joe Machens Ford Lincoln 10/06/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07526 - Ambitec Inc 10/07/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07527 - Brittany Garland 10/07/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07528 - Mattie Wiles 10/07/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07529 - Megan D Estes 10/07/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07530 - Brittany Elizabeth Williams 10/07/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07531 - Kaitlyn Flom 10/07/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07532 - Jana Henderson 10/08/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07533 - Miles Thomas 10/08/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07534 - Bishop Davidson 10/08/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07535 - Kaleb Stutesmun 10/15/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07536 - Kelsi Fritts 10/15/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07537 - Dustin Luttrell 10/15/2021 SHERRI WOODS

07538 - Cheryl D Dean 10/15/2021 SHERRI WOODS

Vendor Count: (34)

10

Item 3.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-58 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Approving the Final Plat of Olde Savannah Phase Two Subdivision. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Planning Manager, BUILDS Department 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received a Final Plat Application for Olde Savannah Phase Two 

Subdivision on August 02, 2021.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Final Plat of Olde Savannah Phase Two will legally divide approximately four point six-five (4.65) 

acres of land into nineteen (19) residential lots and includes the dedication of Right-of-Way, Utility, and 

Stormwater Easements.  The Final Plat includes approximately (1050) linear feet of street and (990) 

linear feet of sidewalk. 

The Final Plat of Olde Savannah Phase Two conforms to the Preliminary Plat approved by City Council on 

May 19, 2020. 

City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the 

requirements of the Preliminary Plat, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 

Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the Olde Savannah Phase Two Final Plat. 

 

11

Item 4.



ORDINANCE NO. 21- BILL NO. 21-58 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF THE OLDE SAVANNAH PHASE 2 SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or "Republic") is a 

municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly 

created, organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the preliminary plat of the Olde Savannah subdivision (herein called 

"Subdivision") was approved by the Council on May 19, 2020, in Resolution 20-R-11; and 

 
WHEREAS, an application for the review and approval of a final plat of the Subdivision 

was received by the BUILDS Department, after which the BUILDS Department staff caused 

the review of the final plat document; and 

 
WHEREAS, the minimum required public improvements for the subdivision's final 

plat have been inspected and approved by the BUILDS Department. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and 

the City Council relating to the acceptance and approval of the Subdivision 

have been met. 

 
Section 2.   That the final plat of the Subdivision, attached hereto and incorporated herein 

as "Attachment 1", is hereby approved in all respects. 

 
Section 3. That the approval of the final plat of the Subdivision is contingent upon the 

same being recorded within sixty days after the approval certificate is 

signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

 
Section 4. That the sale of lots and construction of structures in the Subdivision shall 

not commence until the final plat has been recorded. 

 

Section 5.  The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 
Section 6. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof 

is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination 

shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 7.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 

passage as provided by law. 

 
 
 

 
BILL NO. 21-58 Page 1 of 2 O RDINANCE NO. 21- 

12

Item 4.



ORDINANCE NO. 21- BILL NO. 21-58 
 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri 
this _______ day of _________________ 2021. 

 

 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Matt Russell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  
 

 
Approved as to Form: /s/ Michael Tighe for Damon Phillips, City Attorney 
 

  
Final Passage and Vote: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 

. - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BILL NO. 21-58 Page 2 of 2 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 

13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



S
86° 46' 11"E

944.79'

   POINT OF

BEGINNING

S87° 53' 01"E

160.00'

N02° 06' 59"E

40.69'

S88° 52' 32"E 236.42'

ABERCORN ST

HABERSHAM ST

S
0
2
°
 
0
6
'
 
5
9
"
W

5
3
8
.
7
0
'

N88° 46' 21"W 387.78'

N
0
1
°
 
0
7
'
 
2
9
"
E

4
8
3
.
1
9
'

2

9,130 SF

3

9,130 SF

4

8,767 SF

5

7,700 SF

6

7,700 SF

7

7,794 SF

8

7,428 SF

9

7,467 SF

10

7,953 SF

11

8,000 SF

12

7,500 SF

13

7,576 SF

14

7,745 SF

15

7,500 SF

16

8,000 SF

18

7,500 SF

19

8,009 SF

N01° 07' 29"E

16.81'

O
L

D
E

 
S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 
A

V
E

17

8,000 SF

1

9,130 SF

16

15

14

13
12

11

10

9

8

TH
E LA

KES A
T S

HUYL
ER R

ID
GE

F
A

R
M

 
R

O
A

D
 
8
9

FARM ROAD 194

FARM ROAD 186

28

SITE

WILLIAMSBURG

R 23 W

T
 
2
8
 
N

LOCATION SKETCH

1" = 2000'

N
02

° 0
6'

 2
6"

E
51

6.
27

'
N

02
° 0

6'
 3

3"
E

13
28

.6
7'

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST,
GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH 02°06'33" EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 1328.67 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 02°06'26"
EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 516.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 86°46'11"
EAST, A DISTANCE OF 944.79 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH
01°07'29" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 16.81 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°52'32" EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 236.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 02°06'59" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 40.69
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°53'01" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 160.00 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE SOUTH 02°06'59" WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST
QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER, ALSO BEING THE WEST LINE OF THE
LAKES AT SHUYLER RIDGE, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK ZZ AT PAGE
279 GREENE COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE, A DISTANCE OF 538.70 FEET TO THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 88°46'21” WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 387.78
FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°07'29" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 483.19 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 202,482 SQUARE FEET OR 4.65 ACRES.

   POINT OF COMMENCING

    SOUTHWEST CORNER OF

SEC. 28, TWP. 28N, RNG. 23W

FINAL PLAT
OF

OLDE SAVANNAH PHASE 2
A SUBDIVISION IN

REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI
 NW 1/4 OF THE SW 1/4

SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST

GRID NORTH MISSOURI STATE PLAN

COORDINATE SYSTEM 1983: CENTRAL ZONE

Scale: 1" = 60'

0 6060

SURVEYOR'S DECLARATION:

THAT I, JAMES A. VAUGHAN DO HEREBY DECLARE THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM

AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF THE LAND HEREIN DESCRIBED PREPARED BY CJW  DATED APRIL 20, 2020 AND THAT THE

CORNER MONUMENTS AND LOT CORNER PINS SHOWN HEREIN WERE PLACED UNDER MY PERSONAL SUPERVISION

IN ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT MISSOURI STANDARDS FOR BOUNDARY SURVEYS AS PROMULGATED BY THE

MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE.

DATE PREPARED:  AUGUST 02, 2021

SIGNATURE: _______________________________________________MO PLS NO. 002555

DATE: ________________________

CERTIFICATE OF TAXES PAID:

THERE ARE NO UNPAID TAXES DUE AND PAYABLE AT THE TIME OF PLAT APPROVAL

AND NO UNPAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, WHETHER OR NOT DUE AND PAYABLE AT THE

TIME OF PLAT APPROVAL ON ANY OF THE LANDS INCLUDED IN THIS PLAT, AND ALL

OUTSTANDING TAXES AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS HAVE BEEN PAID ON ALL

PROPERTY DEDICATED TO PUBLIC USE.

881728300175

PARCEL NUMBER

____________________________________

COUNTY COLLECTION OFFICIAL

________________________

DATE

APPROVAL BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

I,__________________________________________ , CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF

REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PLAT OF

OLDE SAVANNAH PHASE 2, WAS PRESENTED TO, ACCEPTED AND APPROVED BY THE

CITY COUNCIL OF SAID CITY OF REPUBLIC, AND APPROVED BY GENERAL ORDINANCE

NO. ____________ON THE ____________DAY OF ____________, 2021.

_______________________________________

CITY CLERK

________________________

DATE

CONFORMANCE TO THE LAND USE REGULATIONS ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF
REPUBLIC:

I, ______________________________, CITY PLANNER OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC,

MISSOURI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY ON THE ______ DAY OF______________, 2021, THE FINAL

PLAT OF OLDE SAVANNAH PHASE 2, CONFORMS TO THE CITY OF REPUBLIC LAND USE

REGULATIONS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE IV OF THE REPUBLIC CODE OF

ORDINANCES.

CITY PLANNER -

OWNER'S DEDICATION:

AS OWNER I, MIKE SEITZ, MANAGING MEMBER OF OLDE SAVANNAH, LLC HAVE CAUSED THE

LAND DESCRIBED ON THIS PLAT TO BE SURVEYED, DIVIDED, MAPPED, AND ALL ACCESS

RIGHTS RESERVED AND DEDICATED AS REPRESENTED ON THE PLAT. I HEREBY DEDICATE,

GRANT, AND CONVEY RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON TO THE CITY OF

REPUBLIC. FURTHERMORE, I CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO SUITS, ACTIONS, LIENS, OR

TRUSTS ON THE PROPERTY CONVEYED HEREIN, AND WARRANT GENERALLY AND SPECIALLY

THE PROPERTY CONVEYED FOR PUBLIC USE AND WILL EXECUTE SUCH FURTHER

ASSURANCES AS MAY BE REQUIRED.

________________________________

MIKE SEITZ, MANAGING MEMBER, OLDE SAVANNAH, LLC

________________________________

DATE:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

STATE OF MISSOURI  )

       ) SS

COUNTY OF GREENE )

ON THIS  DAY OF  , 2021, BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED

MIKE SEITZ, TO ME KNOWN, WHO, DULY SWORN, DID SAY THAT HE IS THE MANAGING MEMBER

OF OLDE SAVANNAH, LLC, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI AND THAT HE EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT IN

THE NAME OF THE ENTITY, AND THAT HE HAD THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN THE SAME AND

ACKNOWLEDGED SAID INSTRUMENT TO BE THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF THE SAID LIMITED

LIABILITY COMPANY. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY

OFFICIAL SEAL IN MY OFFICE IN  ,                                   COUNTY,

MISSOURI.

NOTARY PUBLIC: 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

GENERAL NOTES:

1.- TOTAL AREA: 202,482 SQ FT = 4.65 ACRES (INCLUDES RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE DEDICATED)

2.- TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS: 19

3.- SMALLEST LOT: LOT 8  (7,428 SQ.FT.)

4.- LARGEST LOT: LOTS 1, 2 & 3  (9,130 SQ.FT.)

5.- DATE PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVED: MAY 19, 2020

6.- CURRENT ZONING: R1-H HIGH DENSITY SINGLE FAMILY

7.- SOURCE OF TITLE: BOOK 2020 PAGE 17080-20

8.- BUILDING SETBACKS -

        FRONT YARD - 25'

        REAR YARD - 25'

        SIDE YARD - 6'

        SIDE YARD W/ STREET FRONTAGE - 15'

9. - ACCORDING TO FEMA COMMUNITY-PANEL NUMBER 29077C0427E, DATED DECEMBER 17,

      2010 THE PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON  LIES WITHIN A DESIGNATED FLOOD ZONE X.

      (AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN)

10.- THE SURVEY SHOWN HEREON WAS PERFORMED TO MEET OR EXCEED THE REQUIREMENTS FOR

       URBAN CLASS PROPERTY

11.- ALL STREET RIGHT OF WAY WILL BE 50 FEET

12.- SIDEWALK WILL BE ON THE EAST SIDE OF OLDE SAVANNAH AVE, THE NORTH SIDE OF    

HABERSHAM ST, AND THE NORTH SIDE OF ABERCORN ST

13.-ALL COMMON AREAS & DRAINAGE AND DETENTION AREAS MUST BE OWNED AND

MAINTAINED BY A HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION.

MISSOURI GEOGRPAHIC REFERENCE SYSTEM

STATION: GR-87A

N: 466761.79 (142269.279 METERS)

E: 1352304.24 (412183.157 METERS)

SPACE RESERVED FOR GREENE COUNTY RECORDER

Revision:No.: Date:

Prepared by:

5051 S. National

Suite 7A

Springfield, MO 65810

www.GoCJW.com

CJW Transportation Consultants,

L.L.C.

Tel:  417.889.3400

Fax:  417.889.3402

OLDE SAVANNAH SUBDIVISION PHASE 2

FINAL PLAT OF

CITY OF REPUBLIC, GREENE CO., MISSOURI

SW1/4 SEC. 28, TWP. 28N, RNG. 23W

PLS-2555

NUMBER

JAMES A.

VAUGHAN

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 M

I

S

S

O

U

R

I

P

R
O

F

E

S

S

I

O

N

A

L

 L
A

N

D

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y
O

R

O

L

D

E

 

S

A

V

A

N

N

A

H

P

H

A

S

E

 

1

B

T
H

E
 
L

A
K

E
S

 
A

T
 
S

H
U

Y
L

E
R

 
R

I
D

G
E

THE SURVEY SHOWN HEREON WAS PERFORMED TO MEET OR EXCEED THE

REQUIREMENTS FOR URBAN CLASS PROPERTY.

THIS SURVEY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE MISSOURI STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY 
BOUNDARY SURVEYS

BEARINGS FOR SURVEY ARE BASED ON GRID NORTH MISSOURI STATE PLANE 

COORDINATE SYSTEM 1983:  CENTRAL ZONE.

1286.00

1286.00

MINIMUM FINISH FLOOR FOR STORM WATER

LOT 16

LOT 17

LEGEND

EXISTING IRON PIN

MEASURED

PLATTED

DEEDED

5/8" IRON PIN

PERMANENT MONUMENT SET, 5/8"X24" REBAR WITH

1 AND 3/4 INCH PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "LC 2007008003"

(SET AT ALL LOT CORNERS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

(SEMI PERMANENT 5/8"X18" REBAR PLASTIC CAPPED "LC-2007008003")

M

P

D

MIKE SEITZ

BOOK 2021 PAGE 22248-21

OLDE SAVANNAH LLC

BOOK 2021 PAGE 22704-21

OWNER/DEVELOPER

OLDE SAVANNAH LLC

3800 S FREMONT AVE

SPRINGFIELD MO 65804

SOUTHEAST CORNER

NW 1/4 SW 1/4

SEC 28, T28N, R23W

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 8

LOT 7

15

Item 4.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-63 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Approving the Final Plat of Monte Cristo Phase 10 Subdivision. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

The City of Republic’s BUILDS Department received a Final Plat Application for the Monte Cristo Phase 

10 Subdivision on September 15, 2021.  

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Final Plat of Monte Cristo Phase 10 will legally divide approximately fifteen point five (15.5) acres of 

land into forty (40) residential lots and includes the dedication of Right-of-Way, Utility, and Stormwater 

Easements.  The Final Plat includes approximately (3253) linear feet of street and (3674) linear feet of 

sidewalk. 

The Final Plat of Monte Cristo Phase 10 conforms to the Preliminary Plat approved by City Council on 

March 27, 2006. 

City Staff has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it substantially conforms to the 

requirements of the Preliminary Plat, in addition to the requirements of the City Code Chapter 410 

Subdivision Regulations, and Article V Major Subdivision-Final Plat. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the Monte Cristo Phase 10 Final Plat. 

 

16

Item 5.



 

BILL NO. 21-63 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 

1 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF MONTE CRISTO PHASE TEN SUBDIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat of the Monte Cristo Subdivision (herein called “Subdivision”) 
was approved by the Council on March 27, 2006, in Resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, an application for the review and approval of the Final Plat of the Subdivision was 
received by the BUILDS Department, after which the BUILDS Department staff caused the review 
of the Final Plat; and 

 
WHEREAS, the minimum required public improvements for the Subdivision’s Final Plat have 
been inspected and approved by the BUILDS Department. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:       That all conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the City Council relating to the acceptance and approval of the Subdivision 
have been met. 

 
Section 2:   That the Final Plat of the Subdivision, attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as “Attachment 1”, is hereby approved in all respects. 
 

Section 3:       That the approval of the Final Plat of the Subdivision is contingent upon 
the same being recorded within sixty days after the approval certificate is 
signed and sealed under the hand of the City Clerk. 

 
Section 4:       That the sale of lots and construction of structures in the Subdivision shall 

not commence until the Final Plat has been recorded. 
 

Section 5: Whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 6:        The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof 
is declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 7:       This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this day of , 2021. 

 
 
BILL NO. 21-63

17

Item 5.



 

BILL NO. 21-63 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 

2 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 
9/27/2021 

 
 
Damon Phillips, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BILL NO. 21-63 

18

Item 5.



19

Item 5.



20

Item 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-64 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Amending Title I, Government Code, Chapter 110, Administrative 
Policies, Article VIII, Authority to Enter into Contracts Policy and Chapter 
120, City Officers and Employees, Article IV, Miscellaneous Provisions. 

Submitted By: 
Karen Haynes, BUILDS Assistant Administrator 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

Issue Statement 

Consideration to approve amendments to Section 110.200, Persons Authorized to Enter into Contracts on 

Behalf of City and 120.140, Acceptance of Easements Dedicated to Public Use.    

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic is requesting Amendments to Section 110.200 to adhere to the Purchasing Policy 

adopted by Council on April 6, 2021 and amend Section 120.140 changing the Director of Public Works to 

the BUILDS Administrator or their designee and granting authority to accept deficient right-of-way for 

projects not requiring platting.  

110.200 Persons Authorized To Enter Into Contracts On Behalf Of City 

The City Administrator and Finance Director are hereby authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of 

the City without prior City Council approval in an amount not to exceed twenty-fivefifty thousand dollars 

($2550,000.00) in value, provided that the City Administrator and Finance Director jointly approve entry 

into such contracts and that the City Council has appropriated funds for such contracts in the budget or 

by City Council action. 

120.140 Acceptance Of Easements And Right-of-Way Dedicated To Public Use 

A. The Director of Public Works BUILDS Administrator or their designee may accept easements and 
deficient right-of-way on behalf of the City when all of the conditions in Subsections (1) through 
(3) exist and at least one (1) of the conditions in Subsection (4) exists. 

1. The easement or deficient right-of-way dedication is offered at no cost to the City or can 
be obtained at a cost that does not exceed the authorizations for purchases established in 
the City purchasing manual for a department head or the City Administrator; 

21

Item 6.



 

2. The easement or deficient right-of-way dedication is adjacent to, or an extension of an 
existing easement or right-of-way or other public infrastructure improvement owned by 
or dedicated to the City; 

3. The easement or deficient right-of-way dedication is necessary for the proposed or 
planned construction or maintenance of a public improvement or storm water drainage 
area; 

4. The easement or right-of-way is necessary or expedient: 
a) To follow a maintenance directive of the City Council; 
b) To improve water, sanitary sewer, and storm water drainage, or right-of-way; or 
c) To obtain additional right-of-way up to the amount prescribed in the City's 

Adopted Major Thoroughfare Plan, Transportation Master Plan, or City 
Code.subdivision regulations of the Land Development Code. 

5. In addition, the Public Works Director BUILDS Administrator or their designee may accept 
easements or deficient right-of-way as part of a project for which obtaining 
easements and/or right-of-way was a known element of the project and proceeding with 
the project has been approved by City Council. This authorization is subject to meeting the 
requirements of the City purchasing manual for expenditures if not otherwise authorized 
by City Council. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

22

Item 6.



 

BILL NO. 21-64 ORDINANCE NO. Page 1 of 3 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-64 ORDINANCE NO. 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AMENDING 

TITLE I, GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 110, ADMINISTRATION POLICIES, ARTICLE VIII, 

AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS POLICY AND CHAPTER 120, CITY OFFICERS AND 
EMPLOYEES, ARTICLE VI, MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or "Republic") isa 

municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly 
created, organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 6, 2021, in Ordinance 21-18, the City Council adopted a new 

purchasing policy contained in Section 110.020 of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, 

Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purchasing policy adopted in Ordinance 21-18 omitted amending 

Section 110.200 regarding the not to exceed amount the City Administrator and Finance 
Director may enter into for contracts on behalf of the City without prior City Council approval; 

and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic has recognized the need to continually review and 

revise the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri to accurately reflect staff titles and 

terminology used within the City; 

 
WHEREAS, authorizing the BUILDS Administrator or their designee to accept right-of- 

way dedications in addition to easements for public use under certain conditions will provide 

the grantors, the City, and the public which it serves, greater flexibility in proceeding with 
public improvements. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, IN 

THESTATE OF MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1: Title I, Government Code, Chapter 110, Administration Policies, 

Article VIII, Authority To Enter Into Contracts Policy is hereby 

amended by amending Section 110.200 Persons   Authorized 

to Enter Into Contracts on Behalf of City to read as follows: 

 
110.200 Persons Authorized To Enter Into Contracts On Behalf Of 
City 

 

The City Administrator and Finance Director are hereby 
authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the City 

without prior City Council approval in an amount not to 

exceed twenty- fivefifty thousand dollars ($2550,000.00) in 

23

Item 6.



 

BILL NO. 21-64 ORDINANCE NO. Page 2 of 3 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-64 ORDINANCE NO. 

 

value, provided that the City Administrator and Finance 

Director jointly approve entry into such contracts and that 

the City Council has appropriated funds for such contracts in 
the budget or by City Council action. 

Title I, Government Code, Chapter 120, City Officers and 

Employees is hereby amended by amending section 
120.140 Acceptance Of Easements Dedicated To Public 

Use to read as follows: 

120.140 Acceptance Of Easements And Right-of-Way 

Dedicated To Public Use 
 
 

A. The Director of Public Works BUILDS Administrator or their 

designee may accept easements and deficient right-of-way on 
behalf of the City when in the exercise of their discretion they 

determine that all of the conditions in Subsections (1) through 

(3) exist and at least one (1) of the conditions in Subsection (4) 
exists, or that the conditions in Subsection (5) exist. 

1. The easement or deficient right-of-way dedication is 
offered at no cost to the City or can be obtained at a cost 

that does not exceed the authorizations for purchases 
established in the City purchasing manual for a 

department head or the City Administrator; 

2. The easement or deficient right-of-way 

dedication is adjacent to, or an extension of, an 
existing easement or right-of-way or other 

public infrastructure improvement owned by or 
dedicated to the City; 

3. The easement or deficient right-of-way dedication is 
necessary for the proposed or planned construction or 

maintenance of a public improvement or storm water 

drainage area; 

4. The easement or right-of-way is necessary or expedient: 

a) To follow a maintenance directive of the City 
Council; 

b) To improve water, sanitary sewer, and storm 

water drainage, or right-of-way; or 

c) To obtain additional right-of-way up to the 

amount prescribed in the City's Adopted Major 
Thoroughfare Plan, Transportation Master 

Plan, or City Code. subdivision regulations of 
the Land Development Code. 

24

Item 6.



 

BILL NO. 21-64 ORDINANCE NO. Page 3 of 3 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-64 ORDINANCE NO. 

 

5. In addition, the Public Works Director BUILDS 

Administrator or their designee may accept easements 

or deficient right-of-way as part of a project for which 
obtaining easements and/or right-of-way was a known 

element of the project and proceeding with the project 

has been approved by City Council. This authorization is 
subject to meeting the requirements of the City 

purchasing manual for expenditures if not otherwise 

authorized by City Council. 

EXPLANATION - Matter in bold-face type in the above is added language. Matter in in the above 
is deleted. 

Section 2. All other Sections of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, not 
specifically referenced in this Ordinance shall remain unmodified and in full 
force and effect. 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
Section 4. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall 
not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, this day of October 2021. 

 
 

 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

 
9/29/2021 

Approved as to Form _______________________________ , Damon Phillips, City Attorney 
 
Final   Passage   and   Vote:   ____________________________________________________ 

25

Item 6.



 

To:  City Council  
From:  Karen Haynes, Assistant BUILDS Administrator 
Date:  October 12, 2021 
Subject:  Deficient Right-of-Way 
 
The proposed Chapter 100 Amendment grants the BUILDS Administrator or their Designee the authority 
to accept Right-of-Way (ROW) in addition to Easements.  The Amendment specifically addresses a 
known gap between the acceptance of ROW by City Council through Final Platting of Major Subdivisions 
and development which occurs when no platting is required.   
 
Generally, the BUILDS Department defines ROW as, a legal right for public use intended to be occupied 
by a road, crosswalk, railroad, utilities, or other mechanism for passage obtained by dedication, lawful 
condemnation, or purchase.   
 
The City’s Land Use Ordinances, Transportation Plan, and Major Thoroughfare Plan identify existing 
ROW and future ROW and more specifically identify the required width of land required for each ROW 
category. 

• Primary Arterial:  110’ 
• Secondary Arterial:  80’ 
• Collector:  70’ 
• Local:  50’ 

The BUILDS Department generally defines Deficient ROW, as any existing or future ROW that is less than 
that identified by Ordinance or Adopted Plan.  Typically, ROW is measured from an existing Section Line 
from the State Coordinate System or from the centerline of the ROW. 

For example, if a property is adjacent to an existing Collector Street (70’); Deficient ROW would be 
defined as anything less than 35’ from the centerline or section line to the property line of the parcel.  In 
this instance, if a Major Subdivision was not proposed, the BUILDS Administrator would have the 
authority to accept the dedication of Deficient ROW through a Deed of Dedication, which would then be 
presented to the Greene County Recorder’s Office for recording. 

 
 
 

 

 

26

Item 6.



27

Item 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-65 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement with 
Missouri Department of Social Services Family Support Division 
Regarding the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program. 

Submitted By: Meghin Cook, Finance Director 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To authorize an agreement with the Department of Social Services to allow citizens to utilize their Low-

Income Household Water Assistance Program for disconnect fees, past due bills, and reconnection fees. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) is administered by the Department of 

Social Services (DSS) and is funded by the Administration of Children and Families. The program will 

provide up to $750 for water and wastewater (sewer) disconnection fees, customers who are in threat of 

disconnection, arrearages (past due bills), and reconnection fees. LIHWAP is expected to begin in Missouri 

on October 1, 2021, for elderly and disabled households, and November 1, 2021, for other households.  

This resource will remain available until September 30, 2023 or until all funds are spent. 

The City of Republic is resuming utility shut offs beginning October 12th and this service would assist those 

at risk of disconnect avoid being shut off or assist in their services being reinstated. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

28

Item 7.



 

Page 1 of 2 
BILL NO. 21-65 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-65 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 

MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH MISSOURI DEPARTMENT 

OF SOCIAL SERVICES FAMILY SUPPORT DIVISION REGARDING THE LOW 

INCOME HOUSEHOLD WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or " 

Republic") is a municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, 

Missouri, being duly created, organized and existing under the laws of the State of 

Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 70.220 RSMo., authorizes governments to cooperate with one 

another in various matters; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Social Services-Family Support Division 

has presented an Intergovernmental Agreement setting forth the terms and conditions 

for providing funds to be used to assist low-income household to have access to 

drinking and wastewater services, attached in Ex. 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in 

the best interest of the City as it will not only benefit low-income households but also 

the community as a whole. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OFREPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. That the Intergovernmental Agreement attached as Ex. 1 is accepted. 

 
Section 2. That Mayor Matt Russell is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of 

the City of Republic, Missouri, the Intergovernmental Agreement 

attached as Ex. 1. 

 
Section 3. That the City Administrator or their designee is authorized and 

directed behalf of the City to take the steps necessary to execute this 

Ordinance and effect the terms of the ordained agreement described 

herein. 

 
Section 4. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 

date of passage. 

 
PA SSED AND APPROVED at a regular mee ting of the City Council of 

the City of Republic, Missouri, this day of October, 2021. 

29

Item 7.



 

Page 2 of 2 
BILL NO. 21-65 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-65 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 
 
 

 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  
10/1/2021 

Approved as to Form: , Damon Phillips, City Attorney 

Final Passage and   Vote:     

30

Item 7.



31

Item 7.



32

Item 7.



33

Item 7.



34

Item 7.



35

Item 7.



36

Item 7.



37

Item 7.



38

Item 7.



39

Item 7.



40

Item 7.



41

Item 7.



42

Item 7.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-R-48 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Appointing a Council Member for Ward 1. 

Submitted By: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

Issue Statement 

The appointment of a Council Member for Ward 1. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

In the April 2021 municipal election, Brandon Self was elected as Council Member to represent Ward I.  

Mr. Self has since moved out of Ward 1 and is not able to serve on the Council pursuant to Section 

3.2(b) of the City's Charter. Therefore, a vacancy has been created on the City Council. 

Pursuant to Section 3.6(c) of the Charter," A vacancy in the Council shall be filled for the remainder of 

the expired term, if any, at the next regular municipal election, but the Mayor with the advice and 

consent of the Council may fill the vacancy until the person elected to serve the remainder of the 

unexpired term takes office." 

This vacancy has been posted by the City and applications have been accepted from residents of Ward 1 

who are interested in serving on the City Council. The Mayor has also interviewed the applicants. 

 

43

Item 8.



_ 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-48 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, APPOINTING A COUNCIL 

MEMBER FOR WARD 1 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City") is a municipal 

corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, Brandon Self was elected as a Council Member for Ward 1 at the municipal 

election held on April 6, 2021, but is unable to serve because he is no longer a resident of Ward 1 

and, therefore, a vacancy has occurred on the City Council for Ward 1; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City's Charter provides under Section 3.6, if a vacancy of the Council 

occurs, it shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term, if any, at the next regular 

municipal election, but the Mayor with the advice and consent of the Council may fill the 

vacancy until the person elected to serve the remainder of the unexpired term takes office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. 
 
 

 
Section 2. 

 

 
Section 3. 

That , with the advice and consent of the 

Council, is appointed as a Council Member for Ward 1 pursuant to Section 

3.6(c) of the Charter. 

 
That the individual appointed shall be subject to the same duties and 

qualifications as would be required of any Council Member elected. 

 
This Resolution shall become effective on and after the date of passage and 

approval. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 

Missouri, this 19th day of October 2021. 
 
 

 

Matt Russell, Mayor 

Attest: 

  _ _  
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

 

10/15_/2021 

 
 

, Damon Phillips, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote: _ 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-48 

44

Item 8.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-66 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Amending Title IV, Land Use, Chapter 405, Zoning Regulations, Article V, 
Height and Area Requirements, Exceptions, and Modifications. 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner of BUILDS Department 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

Issue Statement 

Consideration to approve Amendments to Chapter 405 Article V "Height and Area Requirements, 

Exceptions, and Modifications". 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic is requesting Amendments to Chapter 405 Article V – specifically to Sections 

405.540 and 405.545, to provide clarity to existing regulations and update building height restrictions 

for multi-family structures.   

The purpose of article five is to regulate parcels as they relate to the various zoning districts that the City 

of Republic has adopted.  Section 405.540 consists of a chart that displays those zoning districts and 

conveys how various aspects of parcels are treated for each.  Examples of lot attributes include, but are 

not limited to, setbacks for various yards on a lot, lot width/depth/frontage requirements, and lot 

density.  Accompanying the chart is Section 405.545, which is a list of exceptions.  Use of the chart 

necessitates bouncing back and forth between the two sections to understand the ordinance.   

This amendment reduces the list of exceptions by adding them into the chart, itself, when possible and 

removing those which are redundant or outdated altogether. 

Change in Maximum Building Height 

The Amendment also removes the cap on maximum building height for residential districts.  Previously, 

all residential zoning districts capped building height at three stories.  Research into the topic has led 

Staff to understand that the placement of the limit was originally related to concerns that the Fire 

Department would not be able to adequately serve buildings beyond the three stories.  Staff has 

concluded that these concerns are now mitigated by regulations within the adopted International Fire 

Code (IFC).  The IFC places requirements on the design and build of structures regarding fire safety.  In 

this case, sprinkling is required for residential buildings above eleven meters or, roughly, three stories. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends the approval of the referenced Amendment. 

45

Item 9.



 

BILL NO. 21-66 Page 1 of 2 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-66 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AMENDING TITLE IV, LAND USE, CHAPTER 405, ZONING REGULATIONS, 

ARTICLE V, HEIGHT AND AREA REQUIREMENTS, 
EXCEPTIONS, AND MODIFICATIONS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, the BUILDS Staff is proposing an amendment to Chapter 405-Article V 

“Height and Area Requirements, Exceptions, and Modifications” at Art. 405.540 and Art. 405.545, 

in order to make more clear the requirements described therein and to revise said requirements 

to conform with currently applicable standards, as described in the attached Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, the City did submit said proposed amendment to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, which did set October 12, 2021, as the date a public hearing would be held on such 

proposed amendment; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of the time and date of the public hearing was given by publication 

in The Greene County Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, such notice 

being at least 15 days before the date set for public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted by the Planning and Zoning Commission on 

October 12, 2021, after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact on the proposed 

amendment; and thereafter, submitted the same together with its recommendations, to the 

Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, by a vote of 6 Ayes to 0 Nays, 

recommended approval of such proposed amendment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment was submitted to City Council at its regular 

meeting on October 19, 2021, after which the City Council did proceed to vote to adopt said 

amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The amendment to Chapter 405-Article V “Height and Area Requirements, 
Exceptions, and Modifications” at Art. 405.540 and Art. 405.545, as described 
in attached Exhibit 1 is hereby approved and adopted by Council. 

 
Section 2. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Section 3. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this day of 2021. 
46

Item 9.



 

BILL NO. 21-66 Page 2 of 2 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 

 

 

BILL NO. 21-66 ORDINANCE NO. 21- 
 
 

 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

10/10/2021 

Approved as to Form: , Damon Phillips, 
City Attorney 

 
Final Passage and Vote:    

47

Item 9.



 

   

 

 

  

 
 
405.540 Height And Area Regulations Established -- Chart  
 
The required height and area regulations are established and shown on the following chart which is part of 
Article V. 

CITY OF REPUBLIC HEIGHT AND AREA REGULATIONS CHART  

 AG R-1L R-1M R-1H R1-MH R-1Z R-2 R-3 C-1 C-2 
C-3 

M-
1 

M-
2 

Min. Lot 
Size 

3 
acre

s 

12,000 
s.f. 

9,000 
s.f. 

7,000 
s.f. 

6,000 
s.f. 

5,000 
s.f. 

10,000 
s.f. 

2,500 
s.f.(11) 

-- -- -- -- -- 

Front 
Setback 

25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 
25' 

(3)15' 
15' 
(1) 

15' 
(1) 

15' 
 

15' 
(1) 

15' 
(1) 

Rear 
Setback 

25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25'15' 
15' 
(F6) 

15' 
(F6) 

15' 
(F) 

15' 
(G7) 

30' 
(G7) 

Side 
Street 
Setback at 
an 
Intersecti
on of two 
Collector 
Class 
Streets or 
Greater 

25' 25' (12) 25' (12) 25' (12) 25' 25' 25' 
25' 

(3)15' 
15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 

Side 
Street 
Setback 
at an 
Intersecti
on of 
Local and 
Collector 
Class 
Streets 
 

20' 20' 20' 20' 25' 25' 25' 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 

Side 
Street 
Setback 
at an 
Intersecti
on of 
Local and 

15' 15' 15' 15' 25' 25' 25' 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 15' 

48

Item 9.

https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=405.540_Height_And_Area_Regulations_Established_--_Chart


 

   

 

 

Local 
Class 
Streets. 

Interior 
Side Yard 
Setback 

6' 6' (9) 6' (9) 6' (9) 6' (9) 0(D4) 6' 15' (F6) 
6' 
(F6) 

6' 
(F6) 

6' 
(F) 

15' 
(G7) 

15' 
(G7) 

Min. Lot 
Width 

100' 100' 80' 70' 60' 45' 85' 70' -- -- -- -- -- 

Min. Cul-
de-sac Lot 
Width 

60' 80' (J10) 70' (J10) 60' (J10) 40' (J10) 40' (J10) 80' (J10) 60' (J10) -- -- -- -- -- 

Min. Lot 
Depth 

200' 110' 100' 90' 80' 100' 100' 100' -- -- -- -- -- 

Max. Lot 
Coverage 

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- 80% 
90
% 

90
% 

90
% 

90
% 

90
% 

Max 
Density 
(Lots per 
acre)  

0.33 3.63 4.84 6.22 7.26 8.71 4.36 17.42 -- -- -- -- -- 

Min. 
Distance 
Between 
Structures 

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- 15' -- -- -- -- -- 

Max. 
Building 
Height 

-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

3 
stories(

5) 
-- 

(H8) (H8) (H) (H8) (H8) 

NOTES: The coordinating notes (subscript 1-12) concerning this table are contained in Section 405.545: 
Height and Area Exceptions and Conditions. 

405.545 Height And Area Exceptions And Conditions  

A. The minimum front yard setback established in Section 405.540 shall apply except:  
1. Where a structure or dwelling is to be constructed on a lot or parcel of land that is within 

one hundred (100) feet of an existing structure or dwelling unit on both sides, the minimum 
front yard setback shall be an average of the two (2) closest front corners of the adjacent 
structures; or Where a structure or dwelling is to be constructed on a lot or parcel of land 
that is within one hundred (100) feet of an existing building on one (1) side only, such 
dwelling or structure may be constructed as close to the street as the existing adjacent 
building, with exception to a corner lot, in which the exception shall not apply.  

B. (Reserved)  
C. The front yard and side street setback can be reduced to fifteen (15) feet when off street parking is 

provided in the rear of the main structure or dwelling unit(s).  
D. The dwelling unit shall be placed on one (1) interior side property line with a zero (0) setback and 

the dwelling unit setback on the other interior side property line shall be a minimum of ten (10) feet, 
excluding the connecting elements such as fences, walls and trellises, but including covered porches, 

49

Item 9.

https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances#name=405.545_Height_And_Area_Exceptions_And_Conditions


 

   

 

 

patios and storage spaces which are part of the principal structure. Non-zero lot line dwelling units 
shall comply with the interior side yard setbacks of the appropriate single-family residential district.  

E. No building shall exceed three (3) stories above grade. Upper story (third (3rd) story) windows shall 
not face onto an adjacent property owner's private space if within a less intensive zoning district, 
unless a setback of fifty (50) feet is provided and a vegetative buffer is provided in accordance with 
Section 405.900(C) Option 4.  

F. The minimum interior side or rear yard setback shall be as established in Section 405.540 unless the 
premises is located adjacent to a residential zoning district, in which case the minimum rear yard 
and side yard setback shall each be twenty-five (25) feet.: 

1. The structure is part of a planned commercial complex or center, in which case the setback 
shall not apply; or  

2. The premises is located adjacent to a residential zoning district, in which case the minimum 
side yard setback shall be twenty-five (25) feet.  

G. The minimum interior side or rear yard setback shall be as established in Section 405.540 unless the 
premises is located adjacent to a residential zoning district, in which case the minimum rear yard 
and side yard setback shall each be thirty-five (35) feet in a "M-1" District; and fifty (50) feet in a "M-
2" District.  

H. No maximum building height unless the structure is adjacent to a single-family residential district, in 
which case the height of the structure shall remain below a forty-five degree (45°) bulk plane as 
measured from the boundary of the adjacent residential district.  

I. The minimum interior side yard setback shall not apply to parcel combinations or parcels where 
residential structures are constructed across a common property line, in which ownership of both 
lots are the same and the possibility of future subdivision is eliminated. Parcels in which residential 
structures are proposed for construction across common property lines must comply with the City's 
Subdivision Regulations.  

J. The minimum lot width on a cul-de-sac shall be measured across the front of the lot at the radius of 
the twenty-five (25) feet setback.  

K. The maximum density allowable may be increased in accordance with Section 405.140(E)—Request 
for an increase in density. 

L. For corner lots at the intersection of two local class thoroughfares, the side street setback shall be 
fifteen (15) feet. For corner lots at the intersection of a local class thoroughfare with a collector class 
thoroughfare, the side street setback shall be twenty (20) feet. For all other intersections, the side 
street setback shall be twenty-five (25) feet.  

 
 

50

Item 9.



51

Item 9.



52

Item 9.



53

Item 9.



54

Item 9.



55

Item 9.



56

Item 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-67 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
Amending Title VI, Business Occupation. 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner of BUILDS Department 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Consideration to approve Amendments to Title VI “Business and Occupation” 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic is requesting Amendments to Title VI “Business and Occupation”, specifically 

Chapters 600, 605, 610, 615, 630, and 631, in order to make general updates that brings the ordinance 

into conformance with the processes currently practiced by the City. 

Title VI lays out how the City’s licensing regime ought conduct itself.  The specific areas covered by the 

ordinance are: licensing of liquor, licensing of businesses, licensing of solicitation activities, licensing of 

massage establishments, cigarette taxing, licensing of pawnshops and pawnbrokers, regulations 

pertaining to the purchase of precious metals or jewelry by a business, and medical marijuana facilities.   

The responsibility of licensing was formerly undertaken by the City Clerk but currently falls under the 

purview of the BUILDS Department.  This change occurred in 2018 but is not reflected by the existing 

ordinance.  A great many of the alterations in the amendment simply denote this: simply substituting 

“BUILDS Department Administrator or their designee” for “City Clerk.”  Other changes consist of 

merging the ordinance with current practices for material collection and application submission and 

review.     

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends the approval of the referenced Amendment. 

57

Item 10.



 

 

BILL NO. 21-67 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AMENDING TITLE 

VI, BUSINESS OCCUPATION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the "City" or "Republic") is a municipal 

corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and 
existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic strives to continually review and revise the Municipal Code of 

the City of Republic, Missouri to enhance clarity and simplify needless complexity or ambiguity in its 

language; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic revised the process of business licensing in 2018, removing it 

from the office of the City Clerk into the BUILDS Department to create a “one stop shop” for businesses 

and building. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, IN THE STATE OF 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1: The amendments to Title VI “Business Occupation” as described in attached Exhibit 

1 is hereby approved and adopted by Council. 

 
Section 2: The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 

 
Section 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, 

Missouri, this _day of November 2021. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10/14/2021 

Approved as to Form , Damon Phillips, City Attorney 
 

Final Passage and Vote:     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BILL NO. 21-67 ORDINANCE NO 21- 
58

Item 10.



[1]  

Exhibit 1 
 

600.030 License Regulations 
 

A. Package Sales, Limitations. No license shall be issued for the sale of intoxicating liquor in 
the original package, not to be consumed upon the premises where sold, except to a 

person engaged in, and to be used in connection with, the operation of one 
(1) or more of the following businesses: a drug store, a cigar and tobacco store, a grocery 

store, a general merchandise store, a confectionery or delicatessen store, nor to any such 
person who does not have and keep in his/her store a stock of goods having a value 
according to invoices of at least one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), exclusive of fixtures and 

intoxicating liquors. Under such license, no intoxicating liquor shall be consumed on the 
premises where sold nor shall any original package be opened on the premises of the vendor 

except as otherwise provided in this Chapter or law. 

B. Newly-Opened Restaurant Bars Or Amusement Places. 

1. Any new restaurant bar having been in operation for less than ninety (90) days may 

be issued a temporary license to sell intoxicating liquor by the drink at retail for 

consumption on the premises between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and Midnight on 
Sunday for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days if the restaurant bar can show a 

projection of annual business from prepared meals or food consumed on the 

premises of at least fifty percent (50%) of the total gross income of the restaurant 
bar for the year or can show a projection of annual business from prepared meals 

or food consumed on the premises which would exceed not less than two hundred 
thousand dollars ($200,000.00). The license fee shall be prorated for the period of 

the temporary license based on the cost of the annual license for the establishment. 

2. Any new amusement place having been in operation for less than ninety (90) days 

may be issued a temporary license to sell intoxicating liquor by the drink at retail for 
consumption on the premises between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and Midnight on 

Sunday for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days if the amusement place can 
show a projection of gross receipts of at least one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00) of which at least fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) of such gross 

receipts are in non-alcoholic sales for the first (1st) year of operation. The license 
fee shall be prorated for the period of the temporary license based on the cost of 
the annual license for the establishment. 

3. Any new resort/restaurant having been in operation for less than ninety (90) days 

may be issued a temporary license, for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days, to 
sell intoxicating liquor by the drink at retail for consumption on the premises 
between the hours of 6:00 A.M. and 1:30 A.M. on weekdays and between the 

hours of 6:00 A.M. on Saturdays until 1:30 A.M. on Sundays. No intoxicating liquor 

may be sold on Sundays except in accordance with the provisions of Section 
600.020(C) of this Code of Ordinances and except in accordance with the 
provisions of Subsection (B)(1) hereof. No such temporary license shall be issued 
except for an establishment having at least thirty (30) rooms for the overnight 
accommodation of transient guests, having a restaurant or similar facility on the 
premises, at least sixty percent (60%) of the gross income of which is derived from 

the sale of prepared meals or food; or which is a restaurant provided with special 
space and accommodations where, in consideration of payment, food, without 
lodging, is habitually furnished to travelers and customers, and which restaurant 

59

Item 10.



[2]  

can show a projection of annual gross a receipts of not less than seventy-five 
thousand dollars ($75,000.00) per year, with at least fifty thousand dollars 
($50,000.00) of such gross receipts from non-alcoholic sales; or which is a seasonal 
resort restaurant as defined and with food sales as established in Subsection (2) of 

Section 311.095, RSMo. 

C. Temporary Permit For Sale By Drink — Certain Organizations. 
1. The City ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee may issue a 

permit for the sale of intoxicating liquor for consumption on premises where sold to 
any church, school, civic, service, fraternal, veteran, political or charitable club or 
organization for sale at a picnic, bazaar, fair or similar gathering. The permit shall 
be issued only for the day or days named therein and it shall not authorize the sale 

of intoxicating liquor for more than seven (7) days by any such club or organization. 

2. If the event will be held on a Sunday, the permit shall authorize the sale of 

intoxicating liquor on that day beginning at 9:00 A.M. 
3. At the same time that an applicant applies for a permit under the provisions of this 

Subsection, the applicant shall notify the Director of Revenue of the holding of 

the event by certified mail and by such notification shall accept responsibility for 
the collection and payment of any applicable sales tax. 

4. No provision of law or rule or regulation of the City shall be interpreted as 

preventing any wholesaler or distributor from providing customary storage, 

cooling or dispensing equipment for use by the permit holder at such picnic, 
bazaar, fair or similar gathering. 

D. Operating Hours, Days. 
1. No licensee or any employee of such licensee shall sell, give away or otherwise 

dispose of, or allow the same to be done, on or about the premises, any 
intoxicating liquor in any quantity between the hours of 1:30 A.M. and 6:00 A.M. 

on weekdays and between the hours of 1:30 A.M. on Sunday and 6:00 A.M. on 

Monday, except as otherwise authorized and licensed for Sunday sales. Any 

person licensed to sell intoxicating liquor by the drink shall keep a closed place 
during the aforementioned prohibited times. 

2. When January first (1st), March seventeenth (17th), July fourth (4th) or December 

thirty-first (31st) falls on Sunday and on the Sundays prior to Memorial Day and 

Labor Day and on the Sunday on which the national championship game of the 
National Football League is played, commonly known as "Super Bowl Sunday", 

any person having a license to sell intoxicating liquor by the drink may be open for 
business and sell intoxicating liquor by the drink under the provisions of his/her 

license on that day from the time and until the time which would be lawful on 
another day of the week, notwithstanding any provisions of this Chapter to the 

contrary. 

E. General License Regulations. 
1. Each license issued hereunder shall be conspicuously posted on the premises for 

which the license has been issued. 

2. A separate license shall be required for each place of business. Every license issued 
under the provisions of this Chapter shall particularly describe the premises at 
which intoxicating liquor may be sold thereunder, and such license shall not be 
deemed to authorize or permit the sale of intoxicating liquor at any place other than 

that described therein. 

3. No license issued under this Chapter shall be transferable or assignable except as 

herein provided. In the event of the death of the licensee, the widow or widower 
60

Item 10.



[3]  

or the next of kin of such deceased licensee, who shall meet the other 
requirements of this Chapter, may make application and the ClerkBUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designee may transfer such license to permit 
the operation of the business of the deceased for the remainder of the period for 

which a license fee has been paid by the deceased. Whenever one (1) or more 
members of a partnership withdraws from the partnership, the ClerkBUILDS 
Department Administrator or their Designee, upon being requested, shall permit 
the remaining partner or partners originally licensed, to continue to operate for the 
remainder of the period for which the license fee has been paid, without obtaining 

a new license. 

4. In the event any licensee desires to change the location of his/her place of 

business in the City, it shall be necessary for him/her to file an application in the 

same manner as herein provided for an original application, except that no 
additional fee shall be charged and the amended license, describing the new 
location, shall be issued immediately upon the approval of the application by the 

Council. Any change of location of the enterprise prior to issuance of such an 

amended license shall constitute a violation of this Section. 

F. Druggists May Sell And Physicians Prescribe Liquor. Any druggist may have in his/her 

possession intoxicating liquor purchased by him/her from a licensed vendor under a license 

pursuant to State law, or intoxicating liquor lawfully acquired at the place of acquisition 
and legally transported into this State, and lawfully inspected, gauged and labeled as 

provided by State law; such intoxicating liquor to be used in connection with the business 
of a druggist in compounding medicines or as a solvent or preservant; provided, that nothing 

in this Chapter shall prevent a regularly licensed druggist, after he/she procures a license 

therefor, from selling intoxicating liquor in the original package, but not to be drunk or the 

packages opened on the premises where sold; and provided further, that nothing in this 
Chapter shall be construed as limiting the right of a physician to prescribe intoxicating 
liquor in accordance with his/her professional judgment for any patient at any time, or 

prevent a druggist from selling intoxicating liquor to a person on prescription from a 

regularly licensed physician as above provided. 

G. Certain Persons May Not Be Supplied Intoxicating Liquors. 

1. No licensee or his employee shall sell or supply intoxicating liquor, or permit the 

same to be sold or supplied, to a habitual drunkard or to any person who is under or 

apparently under the influence of intoxicating liquor. Intoxicating liquor shall not 
be given, sold or otherwise supplied to any person under the age of twenty-one 
(21) years, but this shall not apply to the supplying of intoxicating liquor to a 

person under said age for medicinal purposes only or to the administering of such 
intoxicating liquor to any person by a duly licensed physician. No person under the 

age of twenty-one (21) years shall sell, or assist in the sale or dispensing of 
intoxicating liquor except as may be authorized under Section 311.300, RSMo. 

2. These provisions shall not apply to premises where substantial quantity of foods 
are served, premises used primarily as a bowling alley or premises with licenses 
prescribed in Section 311.480, RSMo. For the purpose of this paragraph, 

"substantial quantities of food" shall mean the amount of prepared meals and food 
wherefrom at least fifty percent (50%) of the gross income of any establishment 

has been derived during the three (3) most recent months preceding. Persons 

under the age of twenty-one (21) are restricted from entering premises selling 
intoxicating liquors, etc., except that a person age sixteen (16) through twenty 

(20) years may be on said premises if accompanied by a legal guardian, parent or 
61

Item 10.



[4]  

spouse over the age of twenty-one 

(21) years. It shall be unlawful for any licensee holding a sales-by-drink license for 

intoxicating liquor or beer, or his employee, agent or servant, to either directly or 

indirectly suffer or allow a person under the age of twenty- one (21) years to enter 
the premises of said licensee, except that a person age sixteen (16) through twenty 
(20) years may be on said premises if accompanied by a legal guardian, parent or 
spouse over the age of twenty-one 

(21) years. 

H. Prohibiting The Use Of Alcoholic Beverages And Drugs By Any Minor At Open House 

Parties. 
1. No person who is the owner in possession, a tenant or subtenant, or has 

temporary charge of any residence or premises shall allow an open house party 

to take place at the residence or premises if any alcoholic beverage or drug is 
possessed or consumed at the residence or premises by any minor where the 

person knew or reasonably should have known that any alcoholic beverage or 
drug was in the possession of or being consumed by a minor at the residence or 
premises and where the person failed to take reasonable steps to prevent the 

possession or consumption of the alcoholic beverage or drug at the residence or 
premises. 

The provisions of this Section shall not apply to: 

a. The consumption, use or possession of a drug by a minor pursuant to a 

lawful prescription for each drug. 

b. Religious observance or prescribed medical treatments. 

c. The possession by a minor of alcoholic beverages or lawfully prescribed 

drugs incidental to the lawful employment of such minor. 

2. The following definitions shall be used for the provisions of this Section: 
 

ADULT 

Person seventeen (17) years of age or older. 
 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 

Any alcoholic liquor as defined now and hereafter by the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri (RSMo). Currently, "alcoholic liquor" is defined by Section 311.020, RSMo. 

 
CONTROL 

Any form of authority, regulation, responsibility or dominion, including a 

possessory right. 

 
DRUG 

A controlled substance as defined and described now or hereafter by the Revised 
States of Missouri. Currently "controlled substances" are defined and described by 

Sections 195.005 — 195.425, RSMo. 

 
MINOR 

A person not legally permitted by reason of age to possess, consume or 

purchase alcoholic liquor as described now or hereafter by the Revised 
Statutes of Missouri. 

 
 62

Item 10.



[5]  

OPEN HOUSE PARTY 

A social gathering at a residence or premises of persons in addition to the owner 

or those with rights of possession or their immediate family members at which one 
(1) or more minors are present. 

 
RESIDENCE OR PREMISES 

A motel room, hotel room, home, apartment, condominium or other dwelling unit, 

including the curtilage of a dwelling unit, or a hall, meeting room or other place of 
assembly, whether occupied as a dwelling or specifically for social functions and 
whether owned, leased, rented or used with or without compensation. 

 
600.050 Application For License And Renewal 

 
A. Filing Of An Application. Each application for an original or renewal license shall be filed 

with the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk on a form to be 

provided by the City, signed and sworn to by the applicant. Each application shall be 
accompanied by a proper remittance reflecting the appropriate license fee made payable 

to the City. 

B. Qualifications. Neither the applicant nor any officer, director or shareholder of a corporate 

applicant shall have been convicted of a felony or of any distribution, sale or possession of 

any controlled substances or dangerous drugs. The applicant shall present with the 

application a bona fide sale contract or option duly executed, which may be subject to the 
applicant obtaining a liquor license, or a bona fide lease duly executed by the lessor, or an 
option for a lease duly executed, subject to the applicant obtaining a liquor license, covering 

the property for which a liquor license is requested. If the applicant is a corporation, the 

petition shall set forth all of the above information with respect to the managing officer or 

officers, identifying such officer or officers. The application shall further state the full name 
of the corporation, its date of incorporation, its registered agent and registered address, the 

names and addresses of all shareholders of the corporation, and whether said corporation 
operates any other business or controls or is controlled by any other corporation or 

business, and if so, the application shall further state the name of such controlled or 
controlling corporation or business, its registered agent and registered address, and the 

location of all businesses operated by it and the name and address of any such businesses 

with a liquor license, whether within or without the City; and the application shall also state 
if such controlling corporation or any controlled corporation is doing business under a 
fictitious name, and the address where said business is located. The BUILDS Department 

Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk may request such additional information as the 
Clerk may deemed necessary or appropriate in determining whether or not an application 

should be granted or denied. 

C. Review Of Application. Upon the submission of an application to the City, the BUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk shall review the application and 
all documents filed therewith and approve or deny the application in accordance with the 
following: 

1. No license shall be granted for the sale of intoxicating liquor within three hundred 

(300) feet of any school, church or other building regularly used as a place of 
religious worship, unless the applicant for the license shall first obtain the consent, 
in writing, of the Board of Directors of the school or hospital, or the consent, in 
writing, of the majority of the Managing Board of the church or place of worship, 

except that when a school, church or place of worship 
63

Item 10.



[6]  

shall hereafter be established within three hundred (300) feet of any place of 
business licensed to sell intoxicating liquor, the license shall not be denied for lack of 
consent in writing as herein provided. The three hundred (300) feet distance 
provided for in this Section shall be measured from the center threshold of the 

main public entrances of such premises by the most direct walking route. No 
license shall be denied under this Section if a valid license to sell intoxicating 
beverages had been issued for the same location or address within one (1) year 
immediately preceding the application for a new license to be issued for the same 

location. 

2. The City ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee shall not 

approve the issuance of a license if in the opinion of the issuerClerk extraordinary 

or unusual circumstances exist which would result in detrimental harm to the 

surrounding community. In such a circumstance, the matter shall be referred to the 

City Council for its determination. 

3. The City ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee shall approve 

the application and issue a license if after said application is reviewed it is found 

that: 

a. The applicant is a person of good moral character, a native born or 
naturalized citizen of the United States of America, a registered voter and 

a taxpaying citizen of the City; 

b. No license theretofore issued to such applicant to sell intoxicating 

liquors has been revoked within two (2) years of the date of the 
application; 

c. The applicant has not been convicted since the ratification of the Twenty-

First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of the violation 
of any law applicable to the sale of intoxicating liquor, or that such 

applicant has not employed in his/her business any person whose license 
has been revoked or who has been convicted of violating the provisions of 
such law since the date aforesaid; 

d. The applicant plans and proposes to conduct a retail liquor business in 

compliance with the laws of the State of Missouri, the ordinances of the 

City and the provisions of this Chapter; 

e. The provisions of Subdivisions (1) or (2) of this Subsection do not apply. 
D. Upon approval of any application for a license the ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator 

or their designee shall grant the applicant a license to conduct business in the City for a term 

to expire with the thirtieth (30th) day of June next succeeding the date of such license, unless 

such license be revoked or suspended for cause before the expiration of such time. 

E. Applications for renewal of licenses must be filed on or before the first (1st) day of May of 

each calendar year. The City ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their     designee shall 

review such renewal applications in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter and all 
other ordinances of the City which may affect any such renewal application. Upon being 
satisfied that the renewal application is proper and in order and upon payment of the 
appropriate license fee, the ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee shall 
renew the license. 

 

 

 

 

64

Item 10.



[7]  

600.080 Administration Of Law -- License Suspension 

 
A. Suspension Or Revocation Of License — When — Manner. The Hearing Officer may suspend 

or revoke the license of any person for cause shown. In such cases the City ClerkBUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designee shall schedule a hearing before the Hearing 

Officer not less than ten (10) days prior to the effective date of revocation or suspension, 

and prior to the hearing the ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee 
shall give not less than ten (10) days' written notice specifying grounds for the suspension 
or revocation thereof to the licensee of the grounds upon which the license is sought to 
be revoked or suspended and the time, date and place of the hearing. Notice may be 
accomplished by personal delivery, U.S. mail or by posting on the licensed premises. The 

hearing shall be conducted in accordance with Section 600.090 of this Chapter. 

B. Grounds For Suspension Or Revocation. A license may be suspended or revoked for any of 
the following reasons: 

1. Violating any of the provisions of either this Chapter, Chapters 311 or 312, 

RSMo., or any ordinance of the City; 

2. Failing to obtain or keep a license from the State Supervisor of Liquor 

Control; 
3. Making a false affidavit in an application for a license under this Chapter; 

4. Failing to keep an orderly place or house; 

5. Selling, offering for sale, possessing or knowingly permitting the consumption on the 

licensed premises of any kind of intoxicating liquors, the sale, possession or 
consumption of which is not authorized under the license; 

6. Selling, offering for sale, possessing or knowingly permitting the consumption of any 

intoxicating liquor which has not been inspected and labeled according to the laws 
of the State of Missouri; or 

7. Selling, giving, or otherwise supplying intoxicating liquor to: 

a. Any person under the age of twenty-one (21) years, 

b. Any person during unauthorized hours on the licensed premises, 

c. A habitual drunkard or to any person who is under or apparently 

under the influence of intoxicating liquor, or 

d. Any person on the licensed premises during a term of suspension as 

ordered by the Council. 
C. Automatic Revocation/Suspension. A license shall be revoked automatically if the 

licensee's State liquor license is revoked or if the licensee is convicted in any court of any 
violation of Chapter 311 or Chapter 312, RSMo., or of any felony violation of Chapter 

195, RSMo., in the course of business. A license shall be suspended automatically if the 
licensee's State liquor license is suspended, and the suspension shall be for a term not less 

than that imposed by the State. 

D. Effect Of Suspension. No person whose license shall have been suspended by order of the 

Hearing Officer shall sell or give away any intoxicating liquor during the time such suspension 
is in effect. Any licensee desiring to keep premises open for the sale of food or 
merchandise during the period of suspension shall display the Hearing Officer's order of 
suspension in a conspicuous place on the premises so that all persons visiting the premises 
may readily see the same. 

 
 
 

 
65

Item 10.



[8]  

600.090 Hearings Upon Suspension Or Revocation Of Licenses 
 

A. Testimony — Evidence. Hearings before the Hearing Officer shall be in the nature of a 
contested case. Testimony of witnesses and other evidence pertinent to the inquiry may be 
taken in such hearings, and all proceedings in such hearings shall be recorded. Any person 

residing or conducting a business within two hundred (200) feet of the establishment shall 

have the right to produce witnesses and testimony. 

B. Witnesses — How Summoned. Subpoenas may be issued by the Hearing Officer for any 
person whose testimony is desired at any hearing. Such subpoenas may be served and 

returns thereon made by any agent and in the same manner as provided by law for the 

service of subpoenas in civil suits in the Circuit Courts of this State. The Hearing Officer also 
may issue subpoenas duces tecum requiring the production of documents or other items 

pertaining to the subject of the inquiry. 

C. Witnesses To Be Sworn. Before any witness shall testify in any such hearing, he/she shall be 
sworn by the City ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee  to tell the 

truth and nothing but the truth. 
D. Decision — Suspension Or Revocation. If the evidence supports a finding that the license 

should be revoked or suspended pursuant to Section 600.080 of this Chapter, the Hearing 
Officer shall issue a written order which shall include specific findings of fact and conclusions 

of law setting forth the grounds for the action taken. If the evidence fails to support a 
finding that the license should be revoked or suspended, then no such order shall be 
issued. 

E. Appeal. Any applicant or licensee aggrieved by a decision of the Hearing Officer may appeal 

such decision to the Circuit Court pursuant to the procedure set out in Code Section 

430.090. The appeal shall not stay the effect of the Hearing Officer's decision. 

 
605.005 Definitions 

 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this Section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 
APPROVED Complying with all applicable State laws and City ordinances. The word "approved" 
does not give any City Officer or employee discretion to fail to approve any item or method, except 

for failure to comply with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 

BUSINESS Every person, sole proprietorship, corporation, partnership or other types of business 

enterprises, contractor, subcontractor, manufacturer, merchant or wholesaler, excluding charitable 
and civic groups, engaged in any business, occupation, pursuit, profession or trade or in keeping or 
maintaining an institution, establishment, article, utility or commodity specified in this Article, except 
as may be otherwise provided in this Article. 

 
CITY CLERK The City Clerk or designated representative. 

 

CITY OFFICER When duties and responsibilities are given to any City Officer such as the Finance 
Director or the Chief of Police, the duties may be performed by the named officer or any City Officer 
or employee under the officer's supervision, if that City Officer or employee has been assigned by 

his/her superior to perform the duties in question. Duties concerning drafting regulations, drafting 
forms or making recommendations to the City Council are not to be delegated. Duties concerning 

administrative appeals are not to be delegated. 
66

Item 10.



[9]  

 
CONTRACTOR A person who performs, or causes to be performed by employees or 
subcontractors, one (1) or more of the categories of building trades whether for new 
construction or related to maintenance or repair of existing structures or buildings. 

 
BUILDS DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATOR 

The Administrator of the BUILDS Department of the City of Republic. 

 

EMPLOYEE Any person in the regular employ of a merchant, business or contractor and whose 

wages, tips, commissions, fees, draw accounts, salary or any combination thereof are computed on 
an hourly, weekly or monthly basis. 

 
FEES Unless otherwise provided, all license and permit fees and taxes levied on or required to be paid, 

as provided in this Code, by any merchant, manufacturer, contractor or business. 
 

FINANCE DIRECTOR The Finance Director or designated representative. 

 
LICENSE Unless otherwise provided, all licenses and permits required to be secured or had, as 
provided in this Code, by any merchant, manufacturer, business or contractor. 

 
LICENSE YEAR Unless otherwise provided, the license year shall begin on January first (1st) and shall 
end on December thirty-first (31st) next. 

 
MANUFACTURER Every person, excluding charitable and civic groups, engaged in the process of 

manufacturing, fabricating or refining at any place occupied for that purpose within the City, except 

as may be otherwise provided by ordinance. 
 

MERCHANT Every person, excluding charitable and civic groups, engaged in the selling or leasing of 

any goods (new or used), wares (including food or beverages) or merchandise at any store, vehicle, 
stand or place occupied for that purpose within the City, or from catalog stores and similar 
operations within the City, directly to ultimate consumers for use or consumption except as may be 

otherwise provided by ordinance. 
 

PERSON Natural person, firm, partnership, co-partnership, corporation, company, association, joint 
stock association and/or their lessees, duly constituted trustees or receivers, heirs, administrators or 
assigns. 

 
RETAILER Any person who sells to a consumer or to any person for any purpose other than resale. 

 
SAFE Having no defect in design, materials, workmanship, method of installation or method of 

normal use which creates a hazard to any person or property. 
 

SPECIAL EVENT An activity that takes place inover a short period of time usually less than one (1) week 
and generally occurring once per year. Examples of special events include Pumpkin Daze, the fair 
and the rodeo. 

 
SUBCONTRACTOR A licensed contractor under contract or performing for and not on the payroll of a 
licensed contractor or owner. 

 
67

Item 10.



[10]  

TEMPORARY LICENSE An extension of time within which the prior year's license may be used to 
operate on a temporary basis but not to extend longer than March second (2nd) of the license year or 
a license issued for a brief duration as authorized in this Chapter. 

 

TEMPORARY SEASONAL BUSINESS LICENSE A business license to a business that operates during a 
specific period of time during the year and operates ninety (90) days or less in a year. 

 
WHOLESALER Any person engaged in the business of making sales of merchandise or products to any 
other person engaged in the business of making sales of merchandise or products at retail within the 

City. 

 
605.010 General Provisions 

 
A. Scope. The provisions of this Section apply to all business licenses of the City, except where 

an ordinance concerning a particular business contains a specific provision to the contrary, 
in which case the specific provision shall apply. 

B. License Required. It shall be unlawful for a person to operate a business within the City 

without first having obtained a valid business license or permit. It shall be unlawful for a 

person to continue to operate a business after the expiration of the license unless an 
application has been made for a new license and a new license has been issued. 

1. Advertising or soliciting constitutes engaging in business. It shall be unlawful for any 

person who is required by the provisions of this Chapter to secure a license to 

advertise the activity without first securing such license. The listing in an 

advertisement of an address which is inside the City or a telephone number 

which is located inside the City shall constitute prima facie evidence that the 
person is engaged in the business activity that is being advertised. For purposes of 

this Section, "advertising" means the use of any handbill, billboard, sign, 
newspaper, radio, loudspeaker, television, telephone listing, internetcomputer 

listing or other message or device whereby the services or products are offered to 

the public. 

2. It shall be unlawful for any person who is required by the provisions of this 

Chapter to have a license in order to engage in the licensed activity to solicit, to 
accept consideration or to offer the services or products to the public without 
first securing a license. 

C. Application — Issuance Of License. In the absence of a provision to the contrary, 

applications for business licenses shall be made to the BUILDS Department Administrator 

or their designeeCity Clerk on forms supplied by the BUILDS Department Administrator or 
their deigneeCity Clerk. No license shall be issued to any merchant, manufacturer, business, 

occupation or trade until all of its delinquent financial obligations to the City have been paid. 
Financial obligations include, but are not limited to, personal property taxes, other license 

fees, water service fees, sewer service fees, permit fees or inspection fees. If all required 

information is supplied, the requested fees have been paid, and it does not appear that any 
applicable State law or City ordinance will be violated by the operation of the business, the 
license shall be issued. 

D. Late Fee. Businesses (except temporary and seasonal businesses) failing to submit an 
application for license renewal by January first (1st) will be deemed to be late and be 

assessed a late fee as provided for in the fee schedule found in Section 805.060. 
E. License Non-Assignable. No license shall be assignable, transferable or refundable. 
F. Occupancy Permit Required. Licenses required by this Article shall not be issued until an 

68

Item 10.



[11]  

occupancy permit has been issued and approved by the Community Development 
Department unless the business is one that in common practice would not necessarily have 
a business location in the City. In such a case, the business must provide the address of its 
business location on its application and must provide the City with notice of any change of 

address within a reasonable time after the change. In addition, no occupancy or building 
permit may be issued until such time contractors and/or subcontractors have made 
application for a business license. Occupancy permitting may be waived for businesses 
operating out of residences at the discretion of the BUILDS Department Administrator or 
their designee.  

G. Issuing Agency. The BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk shall 

issue all approved licenses and subsequent licenses. 
H. Maintenance And Posting Of License. All licenses granted by the City shall be carefully 

preserved at the address for which they were issued as shown thereon, be prominently 
posted and be available for examination during normal business hours by any duly 
authorized agent of the City. 

I. Denial Of License. No license or permit shall be issued to any applicant who shall have 

failed to pay any other obligation then due and owing to the City, including, but not limited 
to, sales tax, tourism tax, personal property tax, inspection fees and sewer connection fees, 

or be in violation of any lawfully imposed building, health, safety or zoning code and/or 
ordinance; nor shall any license or permit be issued to any applicant for the purpose of 

conducting business at any location where any neighborhood improvement district 
assessment is delinquent and unpaid. 

J. Inspections. Any business in the City may be inspected by City Officers and employees 
authorized to enforce provisions of ordinances relating to that business. In the absence of 

an emergency and in the absence of sound reasons whereby an inspection cannot be 

made during regular business hours, inspections shall be made during regular business 
hours. Immediately upon arriving at the place of business for the purpose of making an 
inspection, the City Officer or employee making the inspection shall identify himself/herself 

and shall state that the purpose of the visit is to make an inspection. No person having control 
of any business premises shall refuse to permit a City Officer or employee to enter for the 

purpose of making an inspection. If entry is refused, the City Officer or employee shall leave 
and seek a search warrant or other appropriate court order to gain entry. 

K. Issuance. Licenses shall be issued to each applicant complying with all applicable State laws 
and City ordinances and licenses shall be refused for any applicant failing to comply with all 

such applicable laws and ordinances. 

L. Issuance Of Temporary License. Upon application for a new business license and if the 

BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk determines that the 
requirements for obtaining a license have been substantially met except for minor 
procedural or ministerial matters, a temporary license may be issued for a period of thirty 
(30) days upon payment of a processing fee as provided for in the fee schedule found in 
Section 805.060. The temporary license may be extended for one (1) additional thirty (30) 

day period upon written application to the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 
designeeCity Clerk and a determination that the applicant is making progress toward 
compliance with the requirements of this Code. 

M. Issuance Of A Temporary Seasonal License. Upon application for a temporary seasonal 
business license and if the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk 
determines that the requirements for obtaining a business license have been met, a 

temporary seasonal business license shall be issued for a period not to exceed ninety (90) 

69

Item 10.



[12]  

days upon payment of a processing fee as provided for in the fee schedule found in Section 
805.060. For purposes of this Chapter, a temporary seasonal business license is not a renewal 
of a previous license but is a request for issuance of a new license and may not be issued in 
lieu of renewal.  

 
605.020 Duration Of Licenses -- Prorating Of License Fees, Etc. 

 
A. The term of licenses issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be for one (1) year beginning 

January 1 and ending December 31 of the same year. All license fees shall be paid in full and 
in advance. 

B. Every merchant, manufacturer, contractor or business renewing a license shall submit the 
required license application and fee on or before January 1. Any new merchant, 

manufacturer, contractor or business commencing operations or business in the last 
quarter of the year shall pay a prorated fee as provided for in the fee schedule found in 

Section 805.060. 

 
605.030 Separate License For Each Place Of Business 

 
A. A separate license shall be obtained for each place of business operated by a licensee under 

this Chapter. 

B. A license may be amended to authorize the conduct of the same business or manufacturing 

at a different location, provided the control of the business remains with the same person, 

upon filing with the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk an 
amended application, within fifteen (15) days of the change. It shall also be compulsory that 

all requirements of the building, health, safety or zoning codes or ordinances be met in 

respect to the new location and premises. 

 
605.060 Proof Of Taxes Paid Required 

 
A. Any person, firm or corporation who is required to pay sales tax to the City of Republic, 

Missouri, must show proof to the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity 
Clerk that all sales taxes due to the State of Missouri and the City of Republic, Missouri, have 
been paid to the date of the application prior to being issued a City business license. 

B. Any person, firm or corporation failing to provide proof of payment of such sales tax shall 

not be issued a City business license until such time as said State and City sales taxes and 
penalties and interest thereon are fully paid and the Department of Revenue for the State of 

Missouri certifies that same are fully paid. 

 
605.070 Violations -- Denial, Non-Renewal, Suspension Or Revocation 

 
A. Delinquent Payments. All license fees provided for in this Article shall be deemed 

delinquent if not paid on or before the due date. 
B. Safety Precautions. No contractor or trade doing business within the City limits and 

actively engaged in the business of electrical work, paving, plumbing, sewer work or gas 
fitting shall permit any unsafe conditions to be left without placement of suitable warning 
lights, signs or barriers and recognized suitable trench safety. Any such violation shall be 
deemed a public nuisance and may be abated by action for civil damages or injunction or 

both such remedies. 

C. Grounds For Denial Or Non-Renewal. The BUILDS Department Administrator or their 
70

Item 10.



[13]  

designeeCity Clerk shall not issue a business license when the City Clerk has reason to 
believe that the issuance of the license will result in the operation of the business in 
violation of this Code or that the operation of the business will cause or result in a 
nuisance or that a nuisance is on the land where the business is to be licensed. Upon the 

BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk making a determination 
that there may be a violation of this Section, the BUILDS Department Administrator or 
their designeeCity Clerk shall notify the applicant in writing that the BUILDS Department 
Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk will not issue the license or that the BUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk will not renew the license, stating 

the reasons for the City Clerk's decision or the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 

designee. 

D. Procedure For Denial Or Non-Renewal. If the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 

designeeCity Clerk determines that the application for a license is not to be granted or if 
the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk determines not to 
renew the license, then a written notice to the person requesting the license or renewal 

thereof shall give the applicant at least five (5) days' notice to request an informal meeting 

with the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. The BUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk shall, if an informal meeting is 

requested within that time, hold a meeting with the applicant, informing the applicant of 
the basis upon which the decision was made and shall attempt to informally resolve the 
matter. The informal meeting shall be held within fiveten (105) working days of receipt of 

the written request for an informal meeting. After such informal meeting, the BUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk may reverse the City Clerk's decision 

of the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designee or may reaffirm the prior 

decision in writing. The City Clerk's written decision of the BUILDS Department 
Administrator or their designee shall be issued within five (5) days of the informal meeting. 

Thereafter, the applicant may request a public hearing by filing a written request with the 

BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk within ten (10) days of the 

date of the City Clerk's written decision of the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 
designee. At the public hearing, a hearing officer appointed by the City Administrator shall 

hear evidence, determine the facts upon the evidence presented at the hearing and render 
a decision. The public hearing shall be held within twenty (20) days of the receipt of the 

written request by the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. The 
decision of the hearing officer shall be in writing and shall be issued within ten (10) days of 

the hearing. The hearing may be continued by the hearing officer for good cause shown by 
any party to the proceeding. 

E. Revocation Or Suspension Of License Authorized. The license of a merchant, 

manufacturer, contractor or business may be revoked by a hearing officer after public 
hearing and notice for any one (1) or more of the following reasons: 

1. Failure to comply with the provisions of this Article or any other ordinance 

pertaining to the business codes, building codes, fire codes, health codes or 
zoning codes or ordinances of the City. 

2. Failure to operate the business as required by law. 
3. Creation of a public nuisance. 

4. Providing false information to obtain a license. 

5. Failure to pay any obligation due and owing to the City. 
F. Notice Of Suspension Or Revocation Hearing. Upon the BUILDS Department Administrator 

or their designeeCity Clerk determining that a possible violation of this Article has occurred, 

the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk shall issue a notice that 
71

Item 10.



[14]  

a hearing relative to the possible suspension or revocation of the business license is to be 
held pursuant to this Section. The licensee shall have at least five (5) days' written notice of 
the time and place of such hearing. The written notice shall be directed by certified or 
registered U.S. mail to the business address of the licensee on the licensee's application on 

file in the office of the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk and 
shall specify the grounds upon which the license is sought to be suspended or revoked. 

At the public hearing, a hearing officer appointed by the City Administrator shall hear 
evidence, determine the facts based upon the evidence presented at the hearing and 

render a decision. The decision of the hearing officer shall be in writing and shall be issued 
within ten (10) days of the hearing. The hearing may be continued by the hearing officer 

for good cause shown by any party to the proceeding. 

G. Hearing On Suspension Or Revocation — Appeals. The licensee may present such 

evidence on licensee's behalf as the Hearing Officer deems relevant. The Hearing Officer's 
decision may be appealed pursuant to the procedure set out in Code Section 

430.090. The appeal shall not stay the effect of the Hearing Officer's decision. 

H. Conduct Of Hearings. The hearing officer shall have all the powers set forth in this Article 
and Chapter 430 of this Code and shall conduct the hearing in accordance with the 

procedures set forth in this Article and Chapter 430. The hearing officer shall determine 
whether or not there is a basis for not issuing the license, not renewing the license, 
suspending the license or revoking the license. The decision of the hearing officer and the 

right to appeal his decision shall be in accordance with this Article and Chapter 430 of this 
Code. All notice for purposes of this Section shall be deemed to occur two (2) days after the 

date the notice is placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid. 

I. Suspension Disposition. If the hearing officer determines that the violation has been 

corrected or that the licensee is actively and continuously working to correct the 
violation, then the hearing officer may issue a suspension order not to exceed sixty 

(60) days. Upon expiration of the period of suspension, the licensee shall submit a written 

request to the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk for 

reinstatement of the license. If the BUILDS Department Department Administrator or their 

designeeCity Clerk determines that the licensee is in compliance with the requirements of 

this Article, the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk shall issue a 

written notice of reinstatement. If the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 

designeeCity Clerk determines that the licensee is not in compliance with this Article, the 

proceedings for revocation of a license shall be instituted. 

J. Revocation Disposition. If the hearing officer determines that there is a violation of this Article 

that has not been corrected or that the violation is incapable of being corrected or that the 

licensee is not actively and continuously working to correct the violation, the hearing 
officer shall revoke the business license. Upon revocation of a license, a business shall not 
be eligible to apply for a business license in the City for one (1) year from the date of 

revocation. After one (1) year, the licensee may apply for a license subject to meeting all 

requirements set forth in this Article. 

K. Discontinuance Of Or Withholding Of City Services. The City, its boards, commissions or 

agents shall withhold or discontinue all City improvements or services of whatsoever nature, 
including the furnishing of sewer, water, electricity and gas, and further, no permits shall be 
issued by the Community Development Department or Public Works Department to any 

entity or persons operating a business within the City limits without a valid business license 
issued pursuant to this Article. Disconnection from the City water utilities may be carried out 
if such violation is not corrected within ten (10) days after delivery of a notice of such 

72

Item 10.



[15]  

violation.  

 
605.110 License -- Fees 

A. The license required by Section 605.100 shall be issued by the BUILDS Department 
Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk upon payment of a fee as provided for in the fee 

schedule found in Section 805.060. 

1. A vehicle with a capacity of one-half (1/2) ton or less. 

2. A vehicle with a capacity of one-half (1/2) ton not exceeding one and one-half (1 
1/2) ton. 

3. A vehicle with a capacity of over one and one-half (1 1/2) ton. 
 

605.130 Collection And Accounting For Taxes Collected Under Article 

 
The license taxes provided for in Section 605.110 shall be collected by the Director of Finance and 
accounted for as other license taxes. The license required by Section 605.100 shall not be issued until 
the amount prescribed therefor shall have been paid to the Director of Finance, and no license shall 
be assigned or transferred. All licenses shall be signed by the Mayor and attested by by the BUILDS 

Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk and countersigned by the Director of 
Finance. 

 
605.140 Exchange Telephone Service -- License Tax 

 
A. Every person, firm, company or corporation now or hereafter engaged in the business of 

furnishing exchange telephone service in the City of Republic, Missouri, shall pay the said 

City as an annual license tax, three percent (3%) of the gross receipts derived from the 
furnishing of such service within said City, as hereinafter set forth. 

B. All such persons, firms, companies or corporations mentioned in Subsection (A) hereof 
shall file with the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk of the 
said City on or before the fifteenth (15th) day of July, 1969, a sworn statement of the 

gross receipts derived by such person, firm, company or corporation from the furnishing of 
such service during the period from January 1, 1969 to June 30, 1969 and on or before the 

fifteenth (15th) day of July and January of each calendar year thereafter a similar 
statement of the gross receipts derived by such person, firm, company or corporation 
from the furnishing of such service during the six (6) month period immediately 

preceding. At the time of filing any such statement, the person, firm, company or 
corporation involved shall pay to the City Collector of the City three percent (3%) of such 

gross receipts. 

C. The first payment of tax provided for herein shall be due and payable on July 15, 1969 and 
shall be for the period from January 1, 1969 to June 30, 1969. 

D. The payments required by the provisions of this Section shall be in lieu of all other excises, 

changes, exactions, rentals, impositions or other license or occupation taxes heretofore 

imposed upon any person, firm, company or corporation engaged in the business 
described in Subsection (A) hereof, but nothing herein contained shall be construed to 
exempt such person, firm, company or corporation from any general or special ad valorem 
tax imposed upon the public generally by said City. 

E. By letter dated April 12, 2006, the Director of Revenue set forth information as to gross 

receipts and taxes paid by telecommunications companies. The figures appear to show a 

substantial under payment of taxes to the City of Republic and are at best in need of 

further analysis to determine if other inaccuracies in the figures may exist that would 
73

Item 10.



[16]  

substantially alter the calculation of the revenue neutral rate. That based upon the most 
reliable information now before the Board, the Board determines that the revenue neutral 
rate for the City of Republic to be three percent (3%) and the percentage set forth in 
Subsections (A — B) of this Section is adjusted to reflect the revenue neutral rate and is to 

be effective July 1, 2006. 

F. It is the intent of the City of Republic to fully comply with the requirements of law; 
however, certain Cities in the State of Missouri have filed suit challenging the validity of 

Section 92.086, RSMo., and should a court of law determine in that case or any other case 

instituted to establish a different revenue neutral rate for the City of Republic that a lesser 
rate should apply, then the City's rate shall be adjusted to meet the judgment of the court 
upon exhaustion of all appeals. 

 
610.060 Identification Card -- Termination 

 
A. Any registration may be revoked or suspended upon a finding by the Hearing Officer that the 

registrant has failed to maintain compliance with the provisions of this Chapter or the 

conditions of the City Clerk's acceptance of the application by the BUILDS Department 
Administrator or their designee. 

B. The hearing procedures set forth in Code Section 605.070 shall apply to this Chapter. 

 
610.070 Licenses Required 

 
No professional solicitor shall participate in public solicitation until he/she has obtained the proper 

licensing from the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk and has paid the 

applicable merchant license fee. 

 
610.090 Reports By Registrants -- Records Open To Inspection 

 
All persons registered with the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk must 
maintain, for his/her inspection or that of his/her duly authorized agent, complete records of all 

transactions in which the registrant engages and for which the public solicitation was made. 

 
610.100 Solicitations From Occupants Of Motor Vehicles Prohibited 

Without prior approval from the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk, it 
shall be unlawful for any person to engage in any public solicitation from the occupants of any 

motor vehicle while said motor vehicle shall be upon the public streets or ways of the City unless 

the vehicle shall be lawfully parked at the time of said solicitation. 

 
615.030 License Fee 

 
A. Any person obtaining a license to act as a massage business shall pay to the BUILDS 

Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk a license fee as provided for in the 
fee schedule found in Section 805.060. The term of licenses issued shall be for one 

(1) year beginning January 1 and ending December 31 of the same year. All license fees 
shall be paid in full and in advance. Any new massage business commencing business in 

the last quarter of the year shall pay a prorated fee as provided for in the fee schedule 
found in Section 805.060. 

B. Every massage business renewing a license shall submit the required license 

application and fee on or before January 1. 
74

Item 10.



[17]  

630.010 Definitions 

 
For the purposes of this Chapter the following terms, phrases, and words shall have the 
following meanings unless otherwise indicated by context: 

 
CHIEF OF POLICE The Chief of Police of the City of Republic Police Department. CITY CLERK The 

person appointed by Council of the City of Republic to perform the City Clerk duties. 
 

BUILDS DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATOR 
The Administrator of the BUILDS Department of the City of Republic. 

 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE The Director of Finance of the City of Republic. 

 
MONTH Period of time from one date in a calendar month to the corresponding date in the 
following calendar month, but if there is no such corresponding date, then the last date of such 

following month, and when computations are made for a fraction of a month, a day shall be one-

thirtieth (1/30th) of a month. 

 
NET ASSETS The book value of the current assets of a person or pawnbroker less its applicable 

liabilities as stated herein. Current assets include the investment made in cash, bank deposits, 

merchandise inventory, and loans due from customers, excluding the pawn service charge. Current 
assets do not include the investments made in fixed assets of real estate, furniture, fixtures, or 

equipment; investments made in stocks, bonds, or other securities; or investments made in prepaid 
expenses or other general intangibles. Applicable liabilities include trade or other accounts payable; 

accrued sales, income, or other taxes; accrued expenses; and notes or other payables that are 

unsecured or secured in whole or part by currents assets. Applicable liabilities do not include 

liabilities secured by assets other than current assets. Net assets must be represented by a capital 
investment unencumbered by any liens or other encumbrances to be subject to the claims of general 
creditors. 

 
PAWNBROKER Any person engaged in the business of lending money on the security of pledged 
goods or engaged in the business of purchasing tangible personal property on condition that it 

may be redeemed or repurchased by the seller for a fixed price within a fixed period of time. 
 

PAWNSHOP The location at which, or premises in which, a pawnbroker regularly conducts business. 
 

PERSON An individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, joint venture, trust, 
association, or any other legal entity however organized. 

 
PERSON OF GOOD MORAL CHARACTER A person who has not been convicted of any State, 
Federal, or municipal offense involving drugs or narcotics, robbery, burglary, theft, stealing, receiving 
stolen property, embezzlement, extortion, forgery, gambling, bribery, perjury, any weapons 

offense, or any crime of violence. 

 
PLEDGED GOODS Tangible personal property other than choses in action, securities, or printed 
evidence of indebtedness, which property is deposited with, or otherwise actually delivered into 

the possession of, a pawnbroker in the course of his/her business in connection with a pawn 

transaction. 

 
75

Item 10.



[18]  

SECURED PERSONAL CREDIT LOAN Every loan of money made in this City, the payment of 
which is secured by a security interest in tangible personal property which is physically 
delivered into the hands of the lender at the time of the making of the loan and which is to be 
retained by the lender while the loan is a subsisting obligation. 

 
630.020 Licenses 

 
A. Licenses Required. No person shall operate a pawnshop in the City of Republic unless such 

person obtains a pawnshop license issued by the City in accordance with the general 
licensing provisions of the Municipal Code and the specific provisions of this Chapter. A 
license is required for each place where pawnbroking business is transacted, and no one 

shall act as an agent, employee, or solicitor for any pawnbroker while such pawnbroker is 

engaged in such business at a place other than that specified in the license. It shall be 

unlawful for any person to conduct or transact a pawnbroker business in the City unless 
he/she shall keep posted in a conspicuous place in the place of business, license certificate 
therefor, and a copy of all ordinances relating to pawnbrokers. 

B. Licensing Year. All licenses issued under this Chapter are for a period of one (1) year, or 
portion of one (1) year, and expire on Midnight of March fifteenth (15th). The license fee 

for any license which is issued for a portion of a year shall be prorated by the BUILDS 
Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. 

C. Application For New Pawnshop License. An application for a new pawnshop license shall be 
under oath and on forms prescribed and provided by the BUILDS Department Administrator 

or their designeeCity Clerk and shall contain other relevant information sufficient to inform 
the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk regarding the 

qualifications of the applicant for a license as required by the BUILDS Department 

Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. At a minimum, the application shall include: 

1. The full name and address of the applicant, and each prospective pawnshop 

employee, if known, for the past two (2) years; 
2. The address where the business is to be conducted; 

3. A statement as to whether the applicant, and each prospective pawnshop 

employee, if known, have ever been convicted of a felony; 

4. The name, address and phone number of at least two (2) persons of good 

moral character who may be used as character references for the applicant, and 
each prospective pawnshop employee, if known; and 

5. If the applicant is a partnership, the application shall include the required 
information for each partner, and whether such partner is a general partner or a 

limited partner. If the applicant is a corporation or limited liability company, the 

application shall include the required information for each officer, shareholder 
and director. 

6. The application shall be accompanied by: 
a. An investigation fee is required, as provided for in the fee schedule found in 

Section 805.060, if the applicant is unlicensed at the time of applying for the 
pawnshop license, an additional fee is required as provided for in the fee 
schedule found in Section 805.060, if the applicant is unlicensed at the 
time of applying for the pawnshop license, or two hundred fifty dollars 
($250.00) if the application involves a second (2nd) or additional license to 
an applicant previously licensed for a separate location, or involves 
substantially identical principals and owners of a licensed pawnshop at a 
separate location; 

76

Item 10.



[19]  

b. Proof of general liability insurance in the amount of five hundred 

thousand dollars ($500,000.00); 
c. An annual fee as provided for in the fee schedule found in Section 

805.060; and 

d. If the applicant is a corporation, a "certificate of good standing" issued by 

the Missouri Secretary of State. 
D. Non-Use And Transfer Of License. 

1. If a pawnbroker shall not conduct business for any continuous period of ninety 

(90) days at any time after the issuance of a license, the license shall be null and 
void. 

2. Licenses are personal to the licensee and shall not be transferred to any other 

person. Any attempt to transfer such license to any other person shall render said 

license null and void. It shall be unlawful for any person to do business, or to 

attempt to do business under a license transferred to him. 

E. Investigation By BUILDS DepartmentCity Clerk. The BUILDS Department Administrator 
or their designeeCity Clerk shall investigate the facts contained in an application for a new 

pawnshop license, and shall request the assistance of the Chief of Police and any other 
person who has knowledge of the facts contained in the application or who is authorized 

to investigate these facts. 

F. Standards For Issuance. No license shall be issued to any person who: 

1. Is not of good moral character, or to any pawnshop employing persons who are 

not of good moral character; 

2. Makes a false statement of material facts in the application for a license or a 

renewal license; 

3. Fails to show that the pawnshop will be operated lawfully and fairly within the 

purposes of the Chapter; 
4. Has a felony or misdemeanor conviction which either directly relates to the 

duties and responsibilities of the occupation of pawnbroker or which 
otherwise makes the applicant presently unfit for a license; 

5. Does not have net assets of at least fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) readily 

available for use in conducting business as a pawnshop for each licensed 
pawnshop; or 

6. Does not file with the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity 

Clerk a bond satisfactory to the BUILDS DepartmentCity Clerk in an amount of five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) with a surety company qualified to do business in this 
City. The aggregate liability of such surety shall not exceed the amount stated in the 

bond. The bond shall run to the City for the use of the City and of any person(s) 

who may have a cause of action against the obligor of such bond under the 
provisions of this Chapter. Such bond shall be conditioned that the obligor will 

comply with the provisions of this Chapter and by all rules and regulations adopted 
by the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk and will pay to 
the City and to any such person(s) any and all amounts of money that may become 
due or owing to the City or to such person(s) from such obligor under and by virtue 
of the provisions of this Chapter or any rules adopted by the BUILDS Department 

Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk pursuant to this Chapter during the time 
such bond is in effect. 

If the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk is unable to verify 
that the applicant meets the net assets requirement for a licensed pawnshop as required 

77

Item 10.



[20]  

by Subparagraph (5) of this Subsection, the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 
designeeCity Clerk may require a finding, including the presentation of a current balance 
sheet, by an independent certified public accountant, that the accountant has reviewed the 
books and records of the applicant, and that the applicant meets the net assets 

requirement of this Chapter. 

G. Exemption From Requirement For New Pawnshop License. No person who is lawfully 
operating a pawnshop on the date of the enactment of this Chapter shall be required to 
obtain a license under this Section in order to continue operating such pawnshop, so 
long as such person does not violate any other provisions of Sections 

367.011 to 367.060, RSMo., or this Chapter. Such persons may continue to operate those 
pawnshops then in existence, but thereafter must receive annual renewal licenses even 
though the operation of such pawnshop might cause the number of pawnbrokers in the City 

to exceed the number determined by operation of Subsection (H) hereof. Such persons 
shall be required to pay the five hundred dollar ($500.00) annual fee prescribed in 

Subsection (I), but such payment shall be in lieu of any occupational license fee. 

H. Limitation On Number Of Pawnbrokers In The City. Subject to the provisions of Subsection 
(G) hereof, no license for engaging in the business of pawnbroker shall be issued when the 
issuance thereof would increase the number of such licenses outstanding and in force at 

that time to more than one (1) per each twelve thousand (12,000) inhabitants residing in 
the City. 

I. Subsequent License Applications. Subsequent to the first year for which a license is issued 
to a pawnbroker, each pawnbroker shall make a renewal application to the BUILDS 

Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. The application shall be filed by 
March first of the current licensing year, and shall be on the forms, and shall contain such 

information, as the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk may 
require. The forms shall contain such information as will assist the BUILDS Department 

Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk in determining whether conditions have 
changed and whether a renewal license should be issued for the subsequent licensing year. 

The BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk may request the 
assistance of the Chief of Police or any other City employee or person having knowledge of 

the truth or falsity of the matters contained in the application, or who is able to investigate 
those matters. The annual fee for the issuance of a renewal license applies as provided for in 
the fee schedule found in Section 805.060.  

J. Denial, Suspension Or Revocation Of License. 

1. If the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk believes that 

any condition prevents issuance of a license or such condition has changed in the 

case of a renewal of a license such that the licensee would not be eligible to receive 
a pawnbroker's license, or that the licensee is in violation of this Chapter or any 

State or municipal law, the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 
designeeCity Clerk shall notify the licensee in writing of the intended action and the 

reasons therefor and the hearing procedures set forth in Code Section 605.070 
shall apply. 

2. If the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk believes that 

the licensee is capable of remedying the adverse change in conditions, and if the 
licensee has not previously been in violation of this Chapter or State or municipal 
law, the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk shall notify 
the licensee in writing of the intended action and the reasons therefor and the 
hearing procedures set forth in Code Section 605.070 shall apply. If the BUILDS 

78

Item 10.



[21]  

Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk believes that the changed 
condition(s) are such that, if true, the licensee would not be able to remedy the 
situation in a reasonable time, or if the licensee has previously been in violation of 
this Chapter or State or municipal law, then the   BUILDS Department Administrator 

or their designeeCity Clerk shall notify the licensee in writing of the intended 
action and the reasons therefor and the hearing procedures set forth in Code 
Section 605.070 shall apply. 

3. If the BUILDS DepartmentCity Clerk believes that the safety, morals, or peace of 

residents of the City is immediately affected by the change in conditions, the 

BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk may suspend or 
revoke the license prior to the hearing called for below, but he/she shall afford the 
licensee an informal meeting to determine if the emergency suspension should 

continue in place and the informal meeting will be within five (5) business days of 
the suspension or revocation. If the BUILDS Department Administrator or their 
designeeCity Clerk believes that the changed condition is not of such imminent 

hazard to the safety, morals, or peace of the residents of the City, he/she shall notify 

the licensee in writing of the intended action and the reasons therefor and the 
hearing procedures set forth in Code Section 605.070 shall apply. This procedure 

shall apply to a hearing as a result of an emergency suspension described above. 

K. Issuance Of Pawnshop Licenses Prohibited, When.  
1. No license shall be issued for the operation of a pawnshop as defined within this 

Chapter wherein said pawnshop will be located within one thousand (1,000) feet 
of any church or other building regularly used as a place of religious worship, 

school, or residentially zoned property. The one-thousand- foot distance provided 

for in this Section shall be measured from the center threshold of the main 

entrances of such premises by the most direct walking route. 
2. No license shall be issued for the operation of a pawnshop as defined in this 

Chapter wherein said pawnshop will be located within one thousand (1,000) feet 
of property on which there is located another pawnshop. The one- thousand-foot 
distance provided for in this Section shall be measured from the center threshold of 

the main entrances of such premises by the most direct walking route. 
3. No license shall be issued for the operation of a pawnshop as defined in this 

Chapter wherein said pawnshop will be located within one thousand (1,000) feet 

of any residence, unless the licensee shall provide to the BUILDS Department 
Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk written authorization for such 
operation from the owner of record of such property and each adult resident 

thereof. The one-thousand-foot distance provided for in this Section shall be 
measured from the center threshold of the main entrances of such premises by 
the most direct walking route. 

 
631.010 Purchase Documentation 

 
A. Any business offering payment for the purchase of gold, silver or other precious metal, 

including, but not limited to, aluminum, copper, bronze or precious or semi-precious stones 
and/or jewelry shall, prior to accepting any such items: 

1. Every person required to make and maintain records shall make a daily report to the 

Chief of Police, giving a complete description of all articles purchased or taken in 
barter or exchange by him or pledged with him, including the date of the 

transaction, any number, letter, marking or engraving that may be on such 79

Item 10.



[22]  

property for the purposes of identification, including any owner-applied markings, 
and the first and last name, residential address, driver's license number, military 
identification number, identification certificate number, or other official number 
capable of identifying the seller or pledger, race, sex, color of eyes and hair, and 

height and weight of the person from whom a purchase was made. For all property 
purchased or taken in barter or exchange, an acknowledgment that the seller 
provided the dealer at the time of the sale or barter or exchange with a signed 
document that the seller had the right to sell the property. 

a. Any person selling any of the items listed in this Section must provide the 

person taking such goods a valid government-issued identification to 
complete required forms. 

b. No person or business, either wholesale or retail, shall receive any 

personal property from any minor without written consent of such 
minor's parents or guardian. 

2. Every person regularly engaged in or conducting business for the purchase, sale, 

barter, exchange, recycling, reselling of antiques, coins, any metal including, but 

not limited to, aluminum, copper, gold, silver, brass, bronze and platinum, gems and 
semi-precious stones, watches, both wholesale and retail, shall keep a substantial 

and well-bound book or other form of permanent record in which he/she shall 
legibly and permanently enter a description of all personal property, including 
precious gems or metals, pledged or purchased by him/her, except those items 

purchased from wholesale dealers, including any number, letter, marking or 
engraving that may be on such property for purposes of identification, including 

any owner-applied markings. For purposes of this Chapter, the term "offering 

payment" means the purchase, sale, barter or exchange of any item mentioned in 
this Subsection, including the advertising thereof, and including such business 
conducted by an established dealer in a permanent location, and including any 

temporary, transient or itinerant business, whether or not such dealer is engaged 
in other business activities at such locations. 

a. If such property contains in whole or in part a precious gem or metal and 
such property is difficult to describe, the property shall be photographed 
and the photograph shall be attached to the record book or kept with the 

other permanent record describing the property. The amount of the loan 
or purchase price and, if a loan, the time when the loan shall be due, and 

the interest charged therefore shall also be recorded. 

b. Such records shall not be defaced or erased and shall be open to any 

Peace Officer as defined in Section 590.010, RSMo., together with the 
articles purchased or pledged, provided that the articles shall be still in 
the possession of the dealer or merchant. For purposes of this Chapter, a 

secondhand dealer shall include, but not be limited to, those persons 
who purchase items for resale at flea markets and persons other than 
wholesale dealers in such items. 

c. Every person or business required to keep permanent records under this 
Section shall keep those records for a period of at least two (2) years 
from the date of the last transaction recorded therein. 

d. Every person or business shall make their reports of such property 

(pledged, taken in barter or exchange, or purchased) electronically as set 
out in Section 367.031, RSMo., and shall report the information 

prescribed by that Statute and Subsection 90-3(a) to the electronic 
80

Item 10.



[23]  

database as authorized by the Statute. If more than one (1) such 
electronic database is available for such reporting, each dealer or person 
so licensed shall make their reports to the database directed for such 
reporting by the Chief of Police. The database designation information 

shall be on file with and available at the Police Department headquarter 
and the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. 

B. Each dealer or person licensed by the City and engaged in such business as described in this 
Subsection, in lieu of making the daily report to the Chief of Police as described in the 
preceding Subsection, shall make their daily reports of such property (pledged, taken in 

barter or exchange, or purchased) electronically as set out in Section 367.031, RSMo., and 

shall report the information prescribed by that Statute and in the preceding Subsection to the 
electronic database as authorized by the Statute. If more than one (1) such electronic 

database is available for such reporting, each dealer or person so licensed shall make their 
reports to the database directed for such reporting by the Chief of Police. This database 
designation information shall be on file with and available at the Police Department 

headquarters and the BUILDS Department Administrator or their designeeCity Clerk. 

1. Every person required to make and maintain records pursuant to this Section, in 

addition to the report required in Subsection (B), shall make a report of any 
purchase, sale, barter or exchange of scrap metal, including aluminum, copper, 
platinum and all other metals regardless of kind or type, with a value of fifty dollars 

($50.00) or more within twenty-four (24) hours of the purchase, sale, barter or 
exchange to the Chief of Police in an electronic database designated by such Chief. 

The electronic database form or report shall be completed in full without missing 
data or information. 

C. No gold, silver, diamonds or other precious or semi-precious gems or precious metals 

received or purchased by any person subject to Subsection (A), including, but not limited 
to, all persons license by the City and engaged in such business as described in Subsection (A), 

shall be removed from a designated location within the City within ten 

(10) days after receipt thereof, except when redeemed by the owner, nor shall any such 

precious gems or precious metals be melted or recut within ten (10) days from the receipt 
thereof, except when redeemed by the owner. Further, no person subject to Section 

631.010, including, but not limited to, all persons licensed and engaged in such business as 
described in Subsection (A), shall sell, transfer ownership or possession of, or otherwise 
remove from said designated location any goods of any kind or type, including, but not 

limited to, all items described in Subsection (A), received in purchase, sale, barter, exchange 
for seventy-two (72) hours from the time of the receipt of such goods, except for 

redemption of such goods by the owner. 

D. The requirements of this Section are in addition to any other requirements on 

businesses found elsewhere in the Republic Municipal Code. 
E. Violations of this Section shall be punishable by the general punishment provisions set forth 

in Section 100.220 of the Republic Municipal Code. 

 
610.040 Identification Card -- Application 

 
A. Any person required to register under Section 610.020 shall make application to the City Clerk 

BUILDS Department Administrator or their designee upon an approved form for 
registration. No application will be accepted until satisfactory evidence is presented to the 

City ClerkBUILDS Department Administrator or their designee that: 

1. The applicant is of good moral character; 
81

Item 10.



[24]  

2. Shall not have been convicted of a felony in the last five (5) years; 

3. Shall not have had his/her registration revoked within the past three (3) years; and 

4. Shall have paid a non-refundable annual application fee as provided for in the fee 
schedule found in Section 805.060 for a calendar year. In addition, a person may 

obtain a quarterly permit for ninety (90) days as provided for in the fee schedule 
found in Section 805.060. 

5. The applicant shall deliver the application in person to City Hall. 
 

610.080 Background Check 
 

For purposes of ascertaining if criminal convictions have occurred, fingerprinting of applicants or 

licensees for the purpose of receiving criminal history record information shall be required with the 

applicants or licensees bearing both the responsibility and the cost of obtaining the criminal record 

history per the fees established by the State of Missouri. A criminal history shall be good for a period 

of January first (1st) through December thirty-first (31st) of the year of the application. 
 

82

Item 10.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-R-49 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Approving a Preliminary Plat for Emerald Valley Phase 2, a 
Residential Subdivision Consisting of Approximately 48 Acres Located in 
the 1300 Block of North Main Street. 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, Principal Planner for BUILDS Department 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Bester Properties LLC has requested review and approval of a Preliminary Plat of Emerald Valley Phase 2, 

a subdivision of approximately forty-eight (48) acres, consisting of one hundred and forty-five (145) 

residential lots zoned Single Family Medium Density Residential (R1-M), streets, and infrastructure.   

Conformity with Preliminary Plat Review Criteria:  Preliminary Plats are reviewed for their conformance 

with the following review criteria to ensure the development, in the proposed location: 

(1) Will not endanger the public health or safety; 

(2) Will not injure the value of adjoining property or abutting property; 

(3) Will be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, Transportation Plan, Zoning Code, 

Water System Master Plan, Wastewater System Facility Plan, or other plans officially 

adopted by the City Council; and  

(4) Will be in harmony with the area in which it is located 

Preliminary Plats are reviewed by the City Planner and the City Engineer in conformance with the 

requirements of Chapter 410 of Republic’s Municipal Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and all applicable 

City adopted codes and regulations.   

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Preliminary Plat Application is comprised of approximately forty-eight (48) 

acres of land located at the 1300 Block of North Main Street.  The property is zoned Single Family 

Medium Density Residential (R1-M). 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of the application’s conformity with the Preliminary Plat 

Review Criteria identified above.   

 

83

Item 11.



 

 

 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 

The referenced Preliminary Plat contains (145) Single Family Medium Density Residential (R1-M) lots 

with a minimum required lot size of 9,000 square feet and consists of streets, open space, utility 

easements, and detention areas.  The Preliminary Plat of Emerald Valley Phase 2 has a density of 3 

lots/acre.  

Transportation Plan 

The Preliminary Plat proposes two new Street connections: Topaz Boulevard and Citrine Street will both 

connect to Main Street.  There are two future connection points created by this subdivision to serve 

future development: Topaz Boulevard, which terminates to the east, and Sapphire Avenue, which 

terminates to the north. These connections allow those adjacent parcels access to Emerald Valley as 

development progresses.  New public streets will be dedicated to the City during the Final Platting 

Process; deficient Right-of-Way (ROW) along North Main Street will be dedicated to the City during the 

Final Platting Process.   

A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was required of the Applicant.  The Study required determined that the 

future intersection of Main Street and Topaz Boulevard will require a designated southbound left turn 

lane. 

Water and Wastewater Master Plan 

The referenced parcel is not currently connected to municipal utilities, development of the property will 

require connection to the City’s water and sanitary sewer systems.  Development will require an 

extension of the existing water main along the east side of Main Street (transitioning from a 10-inch to 

an 8-inch) from Emerald Valley Phase 1 to the northern edge of the new subdivision.  The looping of the 

water system is expected to create a connection with the 6-inch main on North Hampton Avenue.   

Wastewater will gravity-feed north from the east property line through an 8-inch main to the Evergreen 

Lift Station and then pumped to the Wastewater Treatment Plant.   

Both the water and sewer system currently have the capacity to serve the potential development. 

Zoning Code 

The Preliminary Plat of Emerald Valley Phase 2 has been platted for the construction of one hundred 

forty-five single-family lots, associated infrastructure, including public streets and sidewalks, public 

water and sanitary sewer mains, and stormwater detention.   

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does contain a Special Flood Hazard Area 

(SFHA/Floodplain); development of the subject parcel will require compliance with the 

City’s Floodplain Ordinance. 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel contains one (1) identified sinkhole, located between lots 

194 and 195 along the south side of Sapphire Avenue.  A Sinkhole Analysis was 

completed by the Applicant and reviewed by the City; development of the property  

84

Item 11.



 

 

 

requires compliance with Section 410.700 Sinkholes and Karst Features of the Republic 

Municipal Code, requiring a thirty (30) foot setback from the sinkhole rim for all 

development.  The Preliminary Plat for Emerald Valley Phase 2 meets the requirements 

of the referenced Ordinance. 

Stormwater:  The Preliminary Plat contains two Stormwater Detention Areas between 

designed to control the release of stormwater attributable from the development; the 

first, 2.93 acres on the south edge of the subdivision, the second, 0.97 acres in the 

northwest corner.  The Plat contains a conceptual layout of the Detention Area; the area 

will be designed to mitigate existing conditions to reduce the amount of post-

development flows to less than pre-development flows.  The Stormwater Detention 

Area’s outflow will flow onto adjacent property to the south of the property; a 

Stormwater Report will be reviewed by the TRT during Infrastructure Design review.  

The Stormwater Detention Area and all open space/common area will be maintained by 

a Homeowner’s Association.   

Infrastructure Design:  The design of the streets, sidewalks, water and sanitary sewer systems, 

and stormwater detention will be reviewed and permitted during the Infrastructure Permitting 

Process. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Preliminary Plat in general conformity with the requirements for 

Preliminary Plats and is recommending approval of the application.   

 

85

Item 11.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-49    Page 1 of 2 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-49 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
APPROVING A PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR EMERALD VALLEY PHASE 2, A 

RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 48 ACRES LOCATED 
IN THE 1300 BLOCK OF NORTH MAIN STREET 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council have adopted 

Subdivision Regulations and plans governing the subdivision of land within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat for the Emerald Valley Phase 2 residential subdivision 

consisting of approximately 48 acres and located in the 1300 Block of North Main Street has been 

reviewed by the BUILDS department, City Planner and City Engineer, (“Staff”) for conformance 

with the requirements of applicable City codes and regulations, including Chapter 410 of the 

City’s Municipal Code, all plans officially adopted by City Council, public safety, and area 

impact; and 

WHEREAS, Staff considers the proposed Preliminary Plat to be in general conformity 

with the requirements for Preliminary Plats and is recommending approval of the application for 

same; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the proposed Preliminary 

Plat on October 12, 2021, after which the Commission rendered written findings of fact, and 

thereafter, submitted the same together with its recommendations, to the Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, by a vote of 6  Ayes to 0  N ays, 

recommended approval of such proposed Preliminary Plat. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Preliminary Plat for the Emerald Valley Phase 2 residential subdivision 
consisting of approximately 48 acres and located in the 1300 Block of North 
Main Street, attached as Exhibit A, shall serve as the guide to the 
development of the subdivision. 

 
Section 2. The Preliminary Plat generally complies with the requirements for 

Preliminary Plats. 
 

Section 3. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 4. This Resolution will become effective on and after the date of passage and 
approval as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of October 2021. 

86

Item 11.



 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-49    Page 2 of 2 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-49 
 
 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 

 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  
 
10/10/2021 

Approved as to Form: , Damon Phillips, 
Interim City Attorney 

 

Final Passage and Vote:    

87

Item 11.



PHASE II
 A

PHASE II
 B

G
R

E
E

N
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

E
P

U
B

L
IC

SAPPHIRE AVE

PERIDOT AVE

J
A

D
E

 S
T

E
M

E
R

A
LD

 V
A

LL
E

Y
 D

R

E
M

E
R

A
L
D

  
  
V
A

L
L
E

Y
  
  
D

R

T
O

P
A

Z
 B

L
V

D

C
IT

R
IN

E
 S

T

T
O

U
R

M
A

L
IN

E
 S

T

EMERALD VALLEY DRIVE

MAIN  STREET

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

L
A

T
O

F

E
M

E
R

A
L

D
 V

A
L

L
E

Y
 -

 P
H

A
S

E
 I

I 
A

 &
 P

H
A

S
E

 I
I 

B
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
: 

N
. 

M
A

IN
 S

T
R

E
E

T
R

E
P

U
B

L
IC

, 
G

R
E

E
N

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, 

M
IS

S
O

U
R

I

N

PHASE I

PRELIMINARY PLAT
OF

EMERALD VALLEY - PHASE II 
A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI

OWNER / DEVELOPER

BESTER PROPERTIES, LLC

1075 WEST CAT TAIL

NIXA, MO  65714

PEARL DR

2010 FLOOD PLAIN AREA

2019 FLOOD PLAIN AREA

88

Item 11.



89

Item 11.



90

Item 11.



91

Item 11.



92

Item 11.



93

Item 11.



94

Item 11.



95

Item 11.



96

Item 11.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-R-50 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Authorizing Execution of a Public Donation Agreement 
Accepting Real Property from Convoy of Hope. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, BUILDS Administrator 

Date: Tuesday, October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

A resolution to authorize the City to enter into an agreement to receive property from Convoy of Hope. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City wishes to enter into an agreement with Convoy of Hope to receive approximately 3.12 acres of 

real property located at 7200 Farm Road 144 for public purposes including the potential construction of 

a water tower and corresponding well and associated utility improvements.  In exchange for the parcel, 

Convoy of Hope would be allowed to place its logo on said tower.  If the City does not utilize the property 

for a water tower and well, it may revert to Convoy of Hope, but the City can also opt to purchase it. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

97

Item 12.



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-50 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A PUBLIC DONATION AGREEMENT ACCEPTING 

REAL PROPERTY FROM CONVOY OF HOPE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, Convoy of Hope is a foreign not for profit corporation in good standing which 

owns certain real property as described in Exhibit 1; and 

WHEREAS, Convoy of Hope desires to dedicate the referenced real property to the City 

for public purpose, which may include construction of a water tower, and which may bear a logo 

from Convoy of Hope, with a possibility of reversion to Convoy of Hope or retention by the City, 

all as described in Exhibit 1; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The submitted attached proposed Public Donation Agreement as attached in 

Exhibit 1 is accepted. 
 

Section 2. On behalf of the City, the City Administrator is authorized to enter into an 
agreement substantially in the form as attached. 

 
Section 3. The City Administrator is authorized on behalf of the City to take the steps 

necessary to execute this Resolution. 
 

Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 5. This Resolution will become effective on and after the date of passage and 
approval as provided by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this 19th day of October 2021. 

 
 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 

 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

 
10/14/2021 , Damon Phillips, City Attorney 

Final Passage and Vote:    
 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-50 Page 1 of 1 98

Item 12.



PUBLIC DONATION AGREEMENT 

 

This Public Donation Agreement is made and entered into as  of the  day of 

  , 2021, by and between the City of Republic, Missouri (the City) and Convoy of 
Hope, a foreign nonprofit corporation in good standing (Convoy of Hope); (collectively, the 
“Parties”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

A. Convoy of Hope owns an approximately 3.12 acre property generally located at 7200 

W. Farm Road 144 (the Parcel) as described in Exhibit 1. 

 

B. Convoy of Hope desires to donate the Parcel to the City for public purpose, as authorized 

by law, under the condition that Convoy of Hope be permitted to add its logo to the water 

tower. 

 

C. The City acknowledges that the Parcel is a donation, and that Convoy of Hope has not and 

will not be provided a direct financial benefit as a condition of the donation. 

 

D. On  , 2021, the City Council of the City adopted _____________authorizing the 

City to enter into this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged and agreed, the City and Convoy of Hope 
agree as follows: 

 

1. Conveyance. The City will provide Convoy of Hope with a general warranty deed in customary 
form to be executed by Convoy of Hope in order to dedicate the Parcel referenced herein to the 
City, which deed will be recorded by the City within 30 days of receipt from Convoy of Hope.  
 

2. Water Tower. The City will hold the Parcel to use for public purpose, including until such a time 
as it may choose to use the parcel for a water tower. If the City uses the Parcel for a water tower, 
then it will allow Convoy of Hope to paint its logo and/or the words “Convoy of Hope” on the water 
tower. The City will also allow Convoy of Hope to maintain or repaint their logo and/or the words 
“Convoy or Hope” as reasonably necessary. Any alternative logos or anything else Convoy of Hope 
desires to paint on the water tower must be approved by the City. 

 

3. Reversion. The City shall have a ten-year “Construction Period” from the date of this Agreement 
in which to build a water tower, which will begin on the date of the signing of this contract. The 
Parties agree that if the Parcel is not used for a water tower within the Construction Period, then 
Convoy of Hope will have the right to the title to the Parcel. Specifically, at the end of the 
Construction Period, if Convoy of Hope has not been permitted to add their logo to a water tower 
on the Parcel, Convoy of Hope is entitled to the title to the Parcel. A demand for title must be made 
at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the Construction Period, and if Convoy of Hope is 
permitted to add its logo to a water tower on the parcel prior to the expiration of the Construction 
Period, then the demand is void. 

 

If the Construction Period ends and Convoy of Hope has not demanded title to the Parcel, then the 
Construction Period will be extended for 2 years, and Convoy of Hope will be able to demand title 
to the parcel as late as 90 days prior to the end of the extended Construction Period on the same 

99

Item 12.



terms as though it were the original Construction Period. If no such demand is made, then the 
Construction Period may be extended automatically to as long as 20 years total without any further 
written agreement. 

 

4. Limitations on Reversion. If Convoy of Hope demands the title to the Parcel while construction 
of a water tower is ongoing, the City may, upon notification of Convoy of Hope, extend the 
Construction Period by two years. 

 
5. Optional Payment in Lieu of Reversion and Exclusion of Remedies. In the event of breach of 

this Agreement by the City the City may opt to retain title to the Parcel and to pay Convoy of Hope 
the fair market value of the Parcel in exclusion of all other remedies Convoy of Hope may have at 
the time or that may arise later, and the Parties will then be free of all future obligations under this 
Agreement. The City may exercise this option by providing written notice to Convoy of  Hope. Fair 
market value will be determined as of the date notice is submitted to Convoy of Hope, and in an 
amount agreed upon by the Parties or determined by a court of proper jurisdiction. 
 

6. Public Donation. As referenced herein, the City acknowledges the Parcel is a donation, and will 
take such steps as are reasonably necessary to document that Convoy of Hope has not and will not 
be provided a direct financial benefit as a condition of the donation. 

 
7. Term. This contract shall be terminated and the City shall have no further obligations under this 

contract: 
 

a. If no Convoy of Hope logo has been added to a water tower on the Parcel, then 20 years after 
the signing of the contract; 

b. Ten years after the Convoy of Hope Logo shall be added to a water tower on the Parcel; 
c. At such time as a water tower on the Parcel shall be destroyed, abandoned, or taken down; 

or 
d. At such time as the City may return title to the Parcel to Convoy of Hope by warranty deed. 

 

8. Entire Agreement. The Parties acknowledge that there may be subsequent agreements related to 
the matters referenced herein; however, this Agreement is the entire agreement to date between the 
Parties, and any changes of other terms or conditions must be in writing and approved by the Parties. 
 

9. Jurisdiction and Venue: This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri 
and venue as to any disputes related to this Agreement shall be Circuit Court of Greene County, 
Missouri.  

 

10. Liability: Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any liability on behalf of the City 
for any direct, special, indirect, liquated, consequential damages, or attorney fees.   

 

11. Indemnification: Missouri law does not allow a governmental entity to indemnify a private 
company. The City will not defend, indemnify, or hold harmless Convoy of Hope, its officers, 
agents, successors, assigns, or any other individual or entity, and this Agreement shall not be 
construed to require any such obligation.    

 

12. Attorney Fees: No attorney fees shall be assessed against the City for any matter related to this 
Agreement.  

 

13. Headings: The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit 
or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 

100

Item 12.



 

14. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any party without the prior written consent 
of the other parties. 

 

15. Public Entity and Officer Immunity and Defenses: In no event shall the language or requirements 
of this Agreement constitute or be construed as a waiver or limitation of any rights or defenses with 
regard to applicable sovereign, governmental, official, or any individual immunities and any other 
protections or defenses as provided by federal and state constitutions, statutes, and laws. The 
procurement and maintenance of insurance shall not be construed as waiving any such defense 
otherwise available. 

 

16. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of competent 
jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section or part, of this Agreement shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 

 

17. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval: To the extent that this Agreement calls for the 
expenditure of funds by the City it is contingent upon the City having sufficient funds available for 
the subject of this Agreement and this Agreement is subject to and conditioned upon approval by 
ordinance by the City Council. 

 

18. Notices: Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed to have 
been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following offices or deposited 
in the United States Mail, Registered or Certified, with postage thereon prepaid as follows: 

 

City of Republic, Missouri Attn: City Administrator 213 North Main 

Street Republic, Missouri 65738 

 

The Registered Agent for Convoy of Hope at the time of Notice, or its 

last Registered Agent with the Missouri Secretary of State. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this to be signed by their duly authorized 

representatives, the day and year set forth below. 

 

Convoy of Hope 

 

___________________________   Dated:_______________________ 

Signature 

 

___________________________    

Printed Name and title 

 

 

City of Republic, Missouri 

 

___________________________   Dated:_______________________ 

David Cameron, City Administrator 

 

 

101

Item 12.



___________________________    

Attest: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

____________________________ 

Damon Phillips, City Attorney 

 

 
 

102

Item 12.



 

Exhibit 1 

 
Convoy of Hope currently owns the Parcel with a legal description as follows: 

 

A TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHEAST  QUARTER  (SE¼)  OF THE 

NORTHEAST  QUARTER  (NE¼) OF SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-

NINE (29) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY-THREE (23) WEST, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI, 

SAID TRACT OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT AN EXISTING IRON PIN AT THE NORTHEAST  CORNER  OF THE  

NORTHEAST  QUARTER  (NE¼) OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼); THENCE SOUTH 

02°30'06" WEST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼) OF THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼), A DISTANCE OF 1323,53 FEET TO AN IRON PIN SET AT THE 

NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST  QUARTER  (SE¼) OF THE NORTHEAST 

QUARTER (NE¼) FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 02°30'06" WEST, ALONG 

THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE¼) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER 

(NE¼), A DISTANCE OF 692.1S FEET TO  AN IRON PIN SET ON THE EXISTING MISSOURI 

HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR FARM ROAD 97; 

THENCE NORTH 87°46'37" WEST, ALONG SAID EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A 

DISTANCE OF 12.36 FEET TO AN EXISTING 1000 NAIL ON THE EXISTING WEST RIGHT-

OF-WAY LINE OF SAID FARM ROAD 97; THENCE  ALONG  THE  EXISTING  MISSOURI 

HIGHWAY  AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION WEST  RIGHT-OF-WAY  LINE OF FARM 

ROAD 97  THE  FOLLOWING  THREE COURSES;   1)  THENCE  SOUTH 12°08'15" WEST, A 

DISTANCE OF 83.13 FEET TO AN IRON PIN SET; 2) THENCE SOUTH 06°49'33" WEST, A 

DISTANCE OF 82.36 FEET TO AN EXISTING 100D NAIL; 3) THENCE SOUTH 00°16'35" WEST, 

A DISTANCE OF 102,71 FEET TO AN EXISTING 100D NAIL, SAID1POINT BEING ON THE 

EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF MISSOURI HIGHWAY 360; THENCE ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-

OF-WAY  LINE OF SAID MISSOURI HIGHWAY  360  THE FOLLOWING SIX COURSES; 1) 

THENCE NORTH 25°06'15" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 60.32 FEET TO AN EXISTING 1000 NAIL; 

2) THENCE  NORTH  21°24'16"  WEST, A  DISTANCE  OF 235.51 FEET TO AN IRON PIN SET; 

3) THENCE NORTH 09°22'29" WEST, A  DISTANCE  OF  250.31 FEET TO AN IRON PIN  SET;  

4)  THENCE  NORTH 04°48'59" EAST, A DISTANCE  OF 196.02 FEET TO  AN  EXISTING  100D 

NAIL; 5)  THENCE  NORTH 14°09'11" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 170,14 FEET TO AN EXISTING 

100D NAIL; 6) THENCE NORTH 27°23'13"  EAST, A DISTANCE OF 89.73 FEET TO AN IRON 

PIN SET ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST  QUARTER  (SE¼)  OF THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼); THENCE SOUTH  88°06'39"  EAST, ALONG THE  NORTH 

LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE¼) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE¼), A 

DISTANCE OF 123.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

103

Item 12.



104

Item 12.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 21-R-51 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Authorizing the Execution of a Fourth Amendment to 
Communication Lease Agreement with New Cingular Wireless PCS, 
LLC. 

Submitted By: Andrew Nelson, BUILDS Administrator 

Date: October 19, 2021 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To approve the fourth amendment to Option Tower and Ground Space Lease with AT&T. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

In 2003, the city approved an agreement with New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (AT&T) allowing them to 
lease space on City property in order to place cellular antennas and all required equipment for operation. 
This lease automatically renews on 5-year terms unless the City chooses to opt out of it.  The new term 
will begin on June 1, 2023 and will be automatically renewed for up to five additional 5-year terms. 

 
This fourth amendment is to allow the Tenant to cancel the agreement within 60 days of renewal date 
and allows modification of rent beginning June 1, 2023.  Monthly rent will be $1,900.00 ($22,800.00 
annually) and will increase by 10% at the beginning of each 5-year extension term.  In addition, this 
amendment also includes a fair and equitable agreement related to utility charges toward the tenant. 
 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval of the amendment. 

105

Item 13.



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-51 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE FOURTH AMENDMENT TO COMMUNICATION 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (herein called the “City” or “Republic”) is a 
municipal corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, 
organized, and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has an existing lease agreement (“Agreement”) with Cingular 

Wireless PCS, LLC (“Tenant”) for lease of a portion of City property located in the area of 687 

East Hines Street, Republic, MO 65738; and 

WHEREAS, in the City and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement as described in the 

attached Exhibit 1, including to extend the terms, adjust the rent, and clarify the scope of Tenant’s 

permitted use, and to revise the notice requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. The submitted attached proposed Fourth Amendment to Communication 

Lease Agreement as attached Exhibit 1 is accepted. 
 

Section 2. On behalf of the City, the Mayor is authorized to enter into an agreement in 
the form as attached. 

 
Section 3. The City Administrator is authorized on behalf of the City to take the steps 

necessary to execute this Resolution. 
 

Section 4. The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 5. This Resolution will become effective on and after the date of passage and 
approval as provided by law. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this day of October 2021. 

 
 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest: 

 

 
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  
 

10/10/2021 

Approved as to Form: , Damon Phillips, 
Interim City Attorney 

 

Final Passage and Vote:    
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-R-51 Page 1 of 1 106

Item 13.



 

 
2021 Amendment 

- 1 - 

Market:               KS / MO 
Cell Site Number:  KS4308 
Cell Site Name:  Republic DT 
Fixed Asset Number:  10041071 

 
 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO COMMUNICATION LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO COMMUNICATION LEASE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) dated 
as of the later date below is by and between City of Republic, Missouri, having a mailing address at 213 North Main 
Avenue, Attn: City Administrator, Republic, MO 65738 (“Landlord”) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address at 1025 Lenox Park Blvd NE, 3rd Floor, Atlanta, GA 
30319 (“Tenant”).  
 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant (or its affiliate or predecessor-in-interest) entered into a Communication 
Lease Agreement ("Original Lease") dated January 17, 2003, as amended by Amendment to Lease Agreement ("First 
Amendment to Communication Lease Agreement") dated April 1, 2003, as amended by Amendment to Lease 
Agreement ("Second Amendment to Communication Lease Agreement") date unknown, and as amended by Third 
Amendment to Lease Agreement ("Third Amendment to Communication Lease Agreement") dated December 2, 
2010, , whereby Landlord leased to Tenant certain Leased Premises, therein described, that are a portion of the 
property (“Property”) located at 687 East Hines Street, Republic, MO 65738 (collectively, the “Agreement”); and  
 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement;  and  
 

WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to adjust the Rent in conjunction with the modifications to the 
Agreement contained herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to clarify the scope of Tenant's permitted 

use of the Leased Premises; and  
 

 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant, desire to amend the Agreement to modify the notice section thereof; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant, in their mutual interest, wish to amend the Agreement as set forth below 
accordingly. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 
 
 

1.   Term.  The term of the Agreement shall be amended to provide that the Agreement has a new initial term 
of five (5) years (“New Initial Term”), commencing on June 1, 2023, (“New Term Commencement Date”).  As of 
such New Term Commencement Date, all remaining extension Terms in the Agreement except as set forth herein 
shall be void and of no further force and consequence. The Agreement will be automatically renewed for up to five 
(5) additional five (5) year terms (each an “Extension Term”) upon the same terms and conditions of the Agreement, 
as amended herein, without further action by Tenant, unless Tenant notifies Landlord in writing of Tenant’s intention 
not to renew the Agreement at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the New Initial Term or the then current 
Extension Term.  Hereafter, the defined term “Term” shall include the New Initial Term and any applicable Extension 
Term. Landlord agrees and acknowledges that except that as such permitted use or other rights may be amended 
herein, Tenant may continue to use and exercise its rights under the Agreement as permitted prior to the New Initial 
Term. 

 
2. Modification of Rent.  Commencing on June 1, 2023, the current rent payable under the Agreement shall be 

One Thousand Nine Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($1,900.00) per month (the “Rent”), and shall continue during the 
Term, subject to adjustment, if any, as provided below.  In the event of any overpayment of Rent prior to or after the 
Effective Date, Tenant shall have the right to deduct from any future Rent payments an amount equal to the 
overpayment amount.    

 

107

Item 13.



 

 
2021 Amendment 

- 2 - 

3. Future Rent Increase / Extension Term Increase.  The Agreement is amended to provide that commencing 
on June 1, 2028, Rent shall increase by ten percent (10%) and at the beginning of each Extension Term, as applicable. 

 
4. Permitted Use.  Tenant, its personnel, invitees, contractors, agents, or assigns may use the Leased Premises, 

at no additional cost or expense, for the transmission and reception of any and all communications signals and, with 
prior written notice to landlord, to modify, supplement, replace, upgrade, expand, including but not limited to the 
number and type(s) of antennas, or refurbish the equipment and/or improvements thereon or relocate the same within 
the Leased Premises at any time during the term of the Agreement for any reason, so long as these changes do not 
exceed the structural capacity of the tower/structure at this height, or in order to be in compliance with any current or 
future federal, state or local mandated application, including but not limited to emergency 911 communication 
services, or for any other reason.  Landlord shall reasonably cooperate in obtaining governmental and other use permits 
or approvals necessary or desirable for the foregoing permitted use.  If Landlord does not comply with the terms of 
this section, in addition to any other rights it may have at law, Tenant may terminate the Agreement and shall have no 
further liability to Landlord.  If Landlord does not comply with the terms of this section, Tenant will have the right to 
exercise any and all rights available to it under law and equity, including the right to cure Landlord’s default and to 
deduct the costs of such cure from any monies due to Landlord from Tenant. 

 
5. Acknowledgement.  Landlord acknowledges that: 1) this Amendment is entered into of the Landlord’s free 

will and volition; 2) Landlord has read and understands this Amendment and the underlying Agreement and, prior to 
execution of this Amendment, was free to consult with counsel of its choosing regarding Landlord’s decision to enter 
into this Amendment and to have counsel review the terms and conditions of this Amendment; 3) Landlord has been 
advised and is informed that should Landlord not enter into this Amendment, the underlying Agreement between 
Landlord and Tenant, including any termination or non-renewal provision therein, would remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
6. Notices.  Article XV of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:   

  
NOTICES.  All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder will be given by first class certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be 
effective when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered.  Notices will be addressed to the parties 
as follows.   

 
If to Landlord: 
 
 City of Republic, Missouri 

Attn: City Administrator  
213 North Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 

  
If to Tenant: 
 
 New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC  

Attn: TAG – LA  
Re: Cell Site #: KS4308 
Cell Site Name: Republic DT (MO) 
Fixed Asset #: 10041071 
1025 Lenox Park Blvd. NE 
3rd Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30319 

 
With a copy to:              
 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC  
Attn: Legal Department 
Re: Cell Site #: KS4308 
Cell Site Name: Republic DT (MO) 

108

Item 13.



 

 
2021 Amendment 

- 3 - 

Fixed Asset #: 10041071 
208 S. Akard Street 
Dallas, Texas, 75202-4206 

 
The copy sent to the Legal Department is an administrative step which alone does not constitute legal notice.  Either 
party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other as 
provided herein. 

 
7. Right of First Refusal.  Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in the Agreement, if at any time 

after the Effective Date, Landlord receives a bona fide written offer from a third party seeking any sale, conveyance, 
assignment or transfer, whether in whole or in part, of any property interest in or related to the Leased Premises, 
including without limitation any offer seeking an assignment or transfer of the Rent payments associated with the 
Agreement or an offer to purchase an easement with respect to the Leased Premises (“Offer”), Landlord shall 
immediately furnish Tenant with a copy of the Offer.  Tenant shall have the right within ninety (90) days after it 
receives such copy to match the financial terms of the Offer and agree in writing to match such terms of the Offer.  
Such writing shall be in the form of a contract substantially similar to the Offer, but Tenant may assign its rights to a 
third party.  If Tenant chooses not to exercise this right or fails to provide written notice to Landlord within the ninety 
(90) day period, Landlord may sell, convey, assign or transfer such property interest in or related to the Leased 
Premises pursuant to the Offer, subject to the terms of the Agreement.  If Landlord attempts to sell, convey, assign or 
transfer such property interest in or related to the Leased Premises without complying with this Article 7, the sale, 
conveyance, assignment or transfer shall be void.  Tenant shall not be responsible for any failure to make payments 
under the Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under the Agreement until Landlord complies with 
this Article 7. Tenant’s failure to exercise the right of first refusal shall not be deemed a waiver of the rights contained 
in this Article 7 with respect to any future proposed conveyances as described herein.    

 
8. Charges.  All charges payable under the Agreement such as utilities and taxes shall be billed by Landlord 

within one (1) year from the end of the calendar year in which the charges were incurred; any charges beyond such 
period shall not be billed by Landlord, and shall not be payable by Tenant.  The foregoing shall not apply to monthly 
Rent which is due and payable without a requirement that it be billed by Landlord.  The provisions of this subsection 
shall survive the termination or expiration of the Agreement. 

 
9. Other Terms and Conditions Remain.  In the event of any inconsistencies between the Agreement and this 

Amendment, the terms of this Amendment shall control.  Except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, the 
Agreement otherwise is unmodified and remains in full force and effect.  Each reference in the Agreement to itself 
shall be deemed also to refer to this Amendment. 

 
10. Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the same meanings as 

defined in the Agreement. 
 
 

[NO MORE TEXT ON THIS PAGE - SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 
 

 
  
  

109

Item 13.



 

 
2021 Amendment 

- 4 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be effective as of the last date written below.  
 
 

LANDLORD: 
City of Republic, Missouri 
 
 

TENANT: 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 
 
By: AT&T Mobility Corporation 
Its: Manager 
 

  
By: ________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
Print Name:      Print Name:       
Its:       Its:       
Date:       Date:       
  

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

 
 

110

Item 13.


	Top
	Item 1.	minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes Document

	Item 2.	records destruction
	Record Destruction Request Form

	Item 3.	vendor
	My Vendor Audit Report

	Item 4.	Copy of Copy of Copy of 2nd reading of SUBD-FNL 21-007 Olde Savannah Phase 2 Final Plat
	SUBD-FNL 21-007 Final Plat Council Report
	Olde Savannah Phase 2 Ordinance
	SUDB-FNL 21-007  OS Ph2 (reduced)
	20155 PHASE 2 FINAL PLAT

	Item 5.	Copy of Monte Cristo Phase 10 Final Plat
	SUBD-FNL 21-008 Final Plat Council Report
	Monte_Cristo_10_Final_Plat_Ordinance.docx
	SUBD-FNL 21-008 MC 10 Vicinity Map (reduced)
	20012 FINAL PLAT MONTE CRISTO PH 10 Signed

	Item 6.	Copy of code change
	ITEM-Staff-1c34a86ae8b841b1b6221b5f6e9251d2 (14)
	Ord_21-64
	Chapter 100 Memo
	Chapter 100 Memo Map

	Item 7.	Copy of DSS
	DSS staff report
	Ord._No._21-.docx
	DOC093021-09302021132010
	DOC093021-09302021131956

	Item 8.	ward 1
	ward 1 appointment
	ward 1 resolution

	Item 9.	Amendment to Chapter 405 Article V "Height and Area Requirements, Exceptions, and Modifications"
	ORD 21-006 CC Staff Report
	ORD 21-006 Amendment
	ORD 21-006 Ordinance Text
	ORD 21-006 FOFs_completed

	Item 10.	ORD 21-007 Business and Occupation Amendment
	ORD 21-007 CC Staff Report
	ORD 21-67  Business Licensing - EDITED KAN
	ORD 21-007 Ordinance Text

	Item 11.	Preliminary Plat for Emerald Valley Phase 2
	CC Staff Report
	2021-10-19 - Resolution - Preliminary Plat - Emerald Valley Phase 2
	Preliminary Plat for Emerald Valley Phase 2
	EV2 Vicinity Map (reduced)
	EV2 Zoning Map (reduced)
	SUBD-PRE 21-006 FOFs_completed

	Item 12.	Resolution to Receive Property from Convoy of Hope
	Resolution - COH Water Tower
	resolution_watertower_(002).docx
	Property Donation k
	Convoy Prop Vicinity Map

	Item 13.	ATT
	Exhibit-Second Amendment to US Cellular agreement (3)
	resolution cingular
	2021 - AT&amp;T Water Tower Lease - Fourth Amendment - UNSIGNED (6) (1)

	Bottom

